
SCV Water Agency 
Regular Board Meeting 

Tuesday, June 18, 2024 
Regular Board Meeting Begins at 6:00 PM 

Members of the public may attend by the following options: 

Have a Public Comment?

Members of the public unable to attend this meeting may submit comments either in writing to ajacobs@scvwa.org or 
by mail to April Jacobs, Board Secretary, Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency, 27234 Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, 
CA 91350. All written comments received before 4:00 PM the day of the meeting will be distributed to the Board 
members and posted on the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency website prior to the start of the meeting. Anything 
received after 4:00 PM the day of the meeting will be made available at the meeting, if practicable, and posted on the 
SCV Water website the following day. All correspondence with comments, including letters or emails, will be posted in 
their entirety. (Public comments take place during Item 3 of the Agenda and before each Item is considered. Please see 
the Agenda for details.) 

------------ 

This meeting will be recorded and the audio recording for all Board meetings will be posted to yourSCVwater.com 
within 3 business days from the date of the Board meeting. 

Disclaimer: Attendees should be aware that while the Agency is following all applicable requirements and guidelines 
regarding COVID-19, the Agency cannot ensure the health of anyone attending a Board meeting. Attendees should 
therefore use their own judgment with respect to protecting themselves from exposure to COVID-19. 

IN PERSON 
TEMPORARY   

LOCATION CHANGE 
Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 

Pine Street Location – Training Room 
23780 Pine Street 
Newhall, CA 91321 

BY PHONE 

Toll Free: 1-(833)-568-8864 
Webinar ID: 160 263 2324

VIRTUALLY 

Please join the meeting from your computer, 
tablet or smartphone: 

https://scvwa.zoomgov.com/j/1602632324 

1

mailto:ajacobs@scvwa.org
https://scvwa.zoomgov.com/j/1602632324


[This page intentionally left blank.] 

2



27234 BOUQUET CANYON ROAD •  SANTA CLARITA,  CALIFORNIA 91350-2173 •  661 297•1600 •  FAX 661 297•1611 
webs i t e  address :  www.yourscvwate r . com

SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

TUESDAY, JUNE 18, 2024 AT 6:00 PM 

TEMPORARY LOCATION CHANGE 

SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY 
PINE STREET LOCATION  

TRAINING ROOM 
23780 PINE STREET 
NEWHALL, CA 91321 

IMPORTANT NOTICES 

This meeting will be conducted in person at the address listed above. As a convenience to the 
public, members of the public may also participate virtually by using the Agency’s Call-In 

Number 1-(833)-568-8864, Webinar ID: 160 263 2324 or Zoom Webinar by clicking on the 
link https://scvwa.zoomgov.com/j/1602632324. Any member of the public may listen to the 

meeting or make comments to the Board using the call-in number or Zoom Webinar link above. 
However, in the event there is a disruption of service which prevents the Agency from 

broadcasting the meeting to members of the public using either the call-in option or internet-
based service, this meeting will not be postponed or rescheduled but will continue without 

remote participation. The remote participation option is being provided as a convenience to the 
public and is not required. Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting in person. 

Attendees should be aware that while the Agency is following all applicable requirements and 
guidelines regarding COVID-19, the Agency cannot ensure the health of anyone attending a 
Board meeting. Attendees should therefore use their own judgment with respect to protecting 

themselves from exposure to COVID-19. 

Members of the public unable to attend this meeting may submit comments either in writing to 
ajacobs@scvwa.org or by mail to April Jacobs, Board Secretary, Santa Clarita Valley Water 

Agency, 27234 Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, CA 91350. All written comments received 
before 4:00 PM the day of the meeting will be distributed to the Board members and posted on 

the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency website prior to the start of the meeting. Anything 
received after 4:00 PM the day of the meeting will be made available at the meeting, if 

practicable, and will be posted on the SCV Water website the following day. All correspondence 
with comments, including letters or emails, will be posted in their entirety. 

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3

tel:+18668994679,,963232301
tel:+18668994679,,660724405
https://scvwa.zoomgov.com/j/1602632324


June 18, 2024 
Page 2 of 3 

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Members of the public may comment as to items within the
subject matter jurisdiction of the Agency that are not on the Agenda at this time.
Members of the public wishing to comment on items covered in this Agenda may do so
at the time each item is considered. (Comments may, at the discretion of the Board’s
presiding officer, be limited to three minutes for each speaker.) To participate in public
comment from your computer, tablet, or smartphone, click the “raise hand” feature in
Zoom. You will be notified when it is your turn to speak, please unmute when
requested. To participate in public comment via phone, dial *9 to raise your hand. When
it is your turn to speak, dial *6 to unmute.

4. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

5. DELTA CONVEYANCE PROJECT UPDATE – PRESENTED BY CALIFORNIA
DEPARTMENT OF WATER RESOURCES ENVIRONMENTAL PROGRAM
MANAGER CARRIE BUCKMAN, DELTA CONVEYANCE DESIGN AND
CONSTRUCTION AUTHORITY EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR GRAHAM BRADNER AND
UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, BERKELEY EMERITUS PROFESSOR DR. DAVID
SUNDING – 30 MINUTES

6. CONSENT CALENDAR   PAGE 

6.1   * Approve Minutes of the June 4, 2024 Santa Clarita Valley 
Water Agency Regular Board of Directors Meeting 7 

6.2   * Approve Adoption of a Resolution Amending and Adopting 
New 2024 Local CEQA Guidelines for Implementing the 
California Environmental Quality Act (Public Resources Code 
§§ 21000 ET SEQ.) for Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 13 

6.3   * Approve Adopting a Resolution Authorizing Santa Clarita 
Valley Water Agency to Provide Water Quality Laboratory 
Testing Services to the State of California Department of 
Water Resources 97 

6.4   * Approve a Change Order for the Beldove (Copper Hill) Water 
Storage Tank 2 Coating Project   101 

6.5   * Approve a Contract with Royal Industrial Solutions for the Rio 
Vista Intake Pump Station Controls Modernization Project 111 

7. ACTION ITEMS FOR APPROVAL   PAGE 

7.1   * Pursuant to a Previously Adopted Mitigated Negative 
Declaration and Addendum, (1) Approve Adopting a 
Resolution for a Construction Contract with GSE Construction 
Co., Inc., and Purchase Orders to Kennedy Jenks for 
Engineering Services During Construction and to MWH 
Constructors for Construction Management and Inspection 
Services and (2) Direct Staff to File a Notice of Determination 
for the Well 205 Perchlorate Groundwater Treatment 
Improvements Project 121 

7.2  Ceremonial Approval of the Name Change from the Rio Vista 
Water Treatment Plant to the E. G. “Jerry” Gladbach Water 
Treatment Plant 

8. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT ON ACTIVITIES, PROJECTS AND PROGRAMS

4



June 18, 2024 
Page 3 of 3 

9. COMMITTEE MEETING RECAP REPORT FOR INFORMATIONAL
PURPOSES ONLY   PAGE 

9.1   * June 6, 2024 Engineering and Operations Committee Meeting 
Recap Report 139 

10. PRESIDENT’S REPORT

11. AB 1234 WRITTEN AND VERBAL REPORTS PAGE 

11.1 AB 1234 Reports 

12. DIRECTOR REPORTS

13. DIRECTOR REQUESTS FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

14. ADJOURNMENT

* Indicates Attachment
 Indicates Handout

Note: The Board reserves the right to discuss or take action or both on all of the above 
Agenda items. 

NOTICES 

Any person may make a request for a disability-related modification or accommodation needed 
for that person to be able to participate in the public meeting by telephoning April Jacobs, 
Secretary to the Board of Directors, at (661) 297-1600, or in writing to Santa Clarita Valley 
Water Agency at 27234 Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, CA 91350. Requests must 
specify the nature of the disability and the type of accommodation requested. A telephone 
number or other contact information should be included so that Agency staff may discuss 
appropriate arrangements. Persons requesting a disability-related accommodation should make 
the request with adequate time before the meeting for the Agency to provide the requested 
accommodation. 

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.5, non-exempt public records that relate to open 
session agenda items and are distributed to a majority of the Board less than seventy-two (72) 
hours prior to the meeting will be available for public inspection at the Santa Clarita Valley 
Water Agency, located at 27234 Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, CA 91350, during 
regular business hours. When practical, these public records will also be made available on the 
Agency’s Internet Website, accessible at http://www.yourscvwater.com.  

Posted on June 12, 2024. 

5

http://www.yourscvwater.com/
April Jacobs
Matt Stone



[This page intentionally left blank.] 

6



Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Santa Clarita Valley Water 
Agency – June 4, 2024 

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency was held 
at Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency, 23780 Pine Street, Newhall, CA 91321 at 6:00 PM on 
Tuesday, June 4, 2024. A copy of the Agenda is inserted in the Minute Book of the Agency 
preceding these minutes. The meeting recording can be accessed by clicking on the following 
link: Board Meeting Recording. 

DIRECTORS PRESENT: Kathye Armitage, Beth Braunstein, Ed Colley, William Cooper, 
Maria Gutzeit, Dirk Marks, Gary Martin, Piotr Orzechowski and 
Ken Petersen. 

DIRECTORS ABSENT:  None. 

Also present: Administrative Services Manager Kim Grass (Virtually), Assistant General 
Manager Steve Cole, Board Secretary April Jacobs, Chief Engineer Courtney Mael, Chief 
Financial and Administrative Officer Rochelle Patterson, Chief Operating Officer Keith 
Abercrombie, Communications Manager Kevin Strauss, Director of Operations Mike Alvord, 
Director of Water Resources Ali Elhassan, General Counsel Tom Bunn (Virtually) and Joe 
Byrne, General Manager Matthew Stone, Information Technology Technician II Jonathan 
Thomas, ACWA JPIA’s Chief Executive Officer Adrienne Beatty, ACWA JPIA’s Director of 
Member Outreach Kevin Phillips and Director of Pooled Programs Jennifer Jobe, ARM, 
Wendelstein Law Group Attorney Darren Burge (Virtually), as well as additional SCV Water 
Agency staff (Virtually), and members of the public (In Person and Virtually).   

President Martin called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM. A quorum was present. 

There were no changes to the June 4, 2024 Board Agenda and it was accepted as shown (Item 
4).  

-------------- 

The Board went into Closed Session at 6:04 PM to discuss Item 5.1: 

Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation – Paragraph (1) of 
Subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9 Name of Case: Katarina Ford vs. Santa 
Clarita Valley Water Agency, et al. Los Angeles Superior Court Case No. 
20STCV44809 

The Zoom meeting was put on hold while the Board went into Closed Session. President Martin 
advised the public and staff for those who wanted to stay, to remain on the current 
teleconference line and once Closed Session ends, the Board would reconvene for Closed 
Session announcements and the conclusion of the meeting. 

President Martin reconvened the Open Session at 6:28 PM. 

Joe Byrne, Esq., reported that there were no actions taken in Closed Session that were 
reportable under the Ralph M. Brown Act (Item 6). 

-------------- 

7

https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/2024-06/Board-Recording-060424.mp3
April Jacobs
Draft

April Jacobs
Item 6.1



June 4, 2024 
Page 2 of 6 
 
 

  

JPIA’s Chief Executive Officer Adrienne Beatty gave the Board an ACWA JPIA update (Item 
7).   
 

-------------- 
 
Upon motion of Director Cooper, seconded by Director Marks and carried, the Board approved 
the Consent Calendar including Resolution Nos. SCV-426, SCV-427, SCV-428 and SCV-429 
by the following roll call votes (Item 8): 
 
Director Armitage   Yes   Director Braunstein   Yes  
Director Colley   Yes     Director Cooper   Yes  
Vice President Gutzeit  Yes   Director Marks    Yes  
President Martin   Yes    Vice President Orzechowski  Yes   
Director Petersen   Yes 

 
RESOLUTION NO. SCV-426 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF THE SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY 
AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER OR CHIEF ENGINEER TO AWARD A 

PURCHASE ORDER TO KENNEDY JENKS CONSULTANTS, INC. 
FOR PLANNING SERVICES FOR THE RIO VISTA WATER TREATMENT PLANT 

MECHANICAL SHOP AND ACCESS ROAD PAVING PROJECT AND FINDING THE 
PROJECT CATEGORICALLY EXEMPT FROM THE CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL 

QUALITY ACT PURSUANT TO CEQA GUIDELINES SECTION 15262 
 

FULL RESOLUTION MAY BE VIEWED BY VISITING THE SCV WATER WEBSITE 
 

RESOLUTION NO. SCV-427 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE 
SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

ADOPTING THE APPROPRIATION OF ALL AS-YET UNAPPROPRIATED FUNDS 
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023/24 

 
FULL RESOLUTION MAY BE VIEWED BY VISITING THE SCV WATER WEBSITE 

 
RESOLUTION NO. SCV-428 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY 
ADOPTING THE APPROPRIATION LIMIT 

FOR FY 2024/25 
 

FULL RESOLUTION MAY BE VIEWED BY VISITING THE SCV WATER WEBSITE 
 

RESOLUTION NO. SCV-429 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SANTA CLARITA VALLEY 
WATER AGENCY AUTHORIZING AN APPLICATION FOR GRANT FUNDING BY THE 

8



June 4, 2024 
Page 3 of 6 
 
 

  

BUREAU OF RECLAMATION’S FY 2024 WATERSMART PLANNING AND PROJECT 
DESIGN GRANTS FOR THE PINETREE GROUNDWATER RECHARGE FACILITY PROJECT 

 
FULL RESOLUTION MAY BE VIEWED BY VISITING THE SCV WATER WEBSITE 

 
 ------------- 

 
Upon motion of Director Petersen, seconded by Director Cooper and carried, the Board adopted 
Resolution No. SCV-430 revising the FY 2024/25 Budget by the following roll call votes (Item 
9.1): 
 
Director Armitage   Yes   Director Braunstein   Yes  
Director Colley   No     Director Cooper   Yes  
Vice President Gutzeit  Yes   Director Marks    Yes  
President Martin   Yes    Vice President Orzechowski  Yes   
Director Petersen   Yes 

 
RESOLUTION NO. SCV-430 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE 

SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
REVISING THE BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2024/25 

 
FULL RESOLUTION MAY BE VIEWED BY VISITING THE SCV WATER WEBSITE 

 
Upon motion of Director Braunstein, seconded by Vice President Orzechowski and carried, the 
Board received and filed the March 2024 Monthly and FY 2023/24 Third Quarter Financial 
Report including the revised March 2024 Director stipends by the following roll call votes (Item 
9.2): 
 
Director Armitage   Yes   Director Braunstein   Yes  
Director Colley   Yes     Director Cooper   Yes  
Vice President Gutzeit  Yes   Director Marks    Yes  
President Martin   Yes    Vice President Orzechowski  Yes   
Director Petersen   Yes 
 

-------------- 
 

General Manager’s Report on Activities, Projects and Programs (Item 10). 
 
The General Manager reported on the following:  
 
He was pleased to report that we had received payment on the recent judgement in SCVWA vs. 
Whitaker. He stated that the Agency first prevailed in a dual Jury and Bench trial in US District 
Court, and recently prevailed in the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals. The District Court 
subsequently entered a final judgement reflecting that decision. Payment was received today in 
the amount of the judgement plus accrued interest totaling $72,348,186. 
He went on to describe the specifics of the apportionment of estimated damages for VOC’s at 
Well V201, and the Saugus 1 and Saugus 2 wells, as well as both perchlorate and VOC’s at 
Well V205. He noted as mentioned in the CIP presentation given this evening, the addition of 
VOC Treatment for Well 201 is currently under construction and treatment for VOC’s at Saugus 

9



June 4, 2024 
Page 4 of 6 
 
 

  

1 and Saugus 2 was recently awarded a construction contract as part of the T&U Wells project 
at the same site. Lastly, he advised that the treatment for Perchlorate and VOC’s at Well V205 
recently opened bids and a contract will be coming to the Engineering and Operations 
Committee and then to the Board for approval shortly. He ended with thanking everyone 
involved in the process for their efforts and assistance in reaching this outcome.  
 
He informed the Board on the recent purchase of Whitaker’s parent corporation, MEGGIT PLC, 
by Parker, he advised that he has hope for a more collaborative relationship, and SCV Water 
intends to both approach matters constructively, and vigorously to defend the quality of our 
community’s local water supply.  
 
Lastly, he thanked the entire team responsible for preparing our updated FY 2024/25 Budget.  
 
To hear the full report, please refer to the Board recording by clicking the meeting recording link 
on the first page of these minutes or visiting the SCV Water Website. 
 

-------------- 
 

Committee Meeting Recap Reports for Informational Purposes Only (Item 11). 
 
Director Armitage commented on the May 20, 2024 Public Outreach and Legislation Committee 
meeting recap report regarding the water refiling station that is used for events. 
 
There were no other comments on the recap reports. 
 
To hear the full comment, please refer to the Board recording by clicking the meeting recording 
link on the first page of these minutes or visiting the SCV Water Website. 
 

-------------- 
 
Written Reports for Informational Purposes Only (Item 12). 
 
There were no comments on the written reports.  
 

-------------- 
 
President’s Report (Item 13). 
  
President Martin updated the Board on upcoming meetings and events. 
 

-------------- 
 
AB 1234 Written and Verbal Reports (Item 14). 
 
Vice President Gutzeit reported that she attended the SCV-GSA regular Board meeting held at 
the Agency’s Pine Street location on June 4, 2024. 
 
Director Braunstein reported that she attended virtually a One-on-One meeting with General 
Manager Stone on May 23, 2024 and attended the Executive Committee of the Special Districts 
Association of North Los Angeles County General Membership luncheon held at AVEK on May 
29, 2024. 

10



June 4, 2024 
Page 5 of 6 
 
 

  

Director Armitage reported that she attended a One-on-One meeting with General Manager 
Stone held at the RVWTP on May 28, 2024 and attended the Executive Committee of the 
Special Districts Association of North Los Angeles County General Membership luncheon held 
at AVEK on May 29, 2024. 
 
Director Cooper reported that he attended the SCV-GSA regular Board meeting held at the 
Agency’s Pine Street location on June 4, 2024. 
 
Director Marks reported that he attended the SCV-GSA regular Board meeting held at the 
Agency’s Pine Street location on June 4, 2024. 
 
President Martin reported that he attended the SCV-GSA regular Board meeting held at the 
Agency’s Pine Street location on June 4, 2024. 
 
There were no other AB 1234 Reports.  
 

-------------- 
 
Director Reports (Item 15). 
 
Director Petersen mentioned that Los Angeles County Waterworks District No. 36 recently 
changed out his meter and it was done very professionally. He stated that he got 22 years of 
service from the old meter.   
   
There were no other Director reports. 
 
To hear the full report, please refer to the Board recording by clicking the meeting recording link 
on the first page of these minutes or visiting the SCV Water Website. 
 

-------------- 
 
Director Requests for approval for event attendance (Item 16). 
 
There were no requests for event attendance.   
 

-------------- 
 
The meeting was adjourned in memory of Lewis D. Bobbitt, Jr. at 8:30 PM (Item 17). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
             
         April Jacobs, Board Secretary 
 
 
 
 

11



June 4, 2024 
Page 6 of 6 
 
 

  

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
     
President of the Board 
 
 

12



BOARD MEMORANDUM 

SUMMARY 

The State California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) Guidelines require local agencies to 
adopt “objectives, criteria and procedures” to implement the requirements of CEQA and the 
State CEQA Guidelines. (State CEQA Guidelines [14 Cal. Code Regs.] section 15022.) The 
2024 Local Guidelines for Implementing the California Environmental Quality Act for Santa 
Clarita Valley Water Agency reflect recent changes to CEQA.  

For detailed information and to view the new guidelines click here: 2024 Local Guidelines - 
CEQA for SCV Water Agency.

BACKGROUND 

The California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”), codified at Public Resources Code section 
21000, et seq., is California’s most comprehensive environmental law. It generally requires 
public agencies to evaluate the environmental effects of their actions before they are taken. 
CEQA also aims to prevent significant environmental effects from occurring as a result of 
agency actions by requiring agencies to avoid or reduce, when feasible, the significant 
environmental impacts of their decisions. 

To this end, CEQA requires public agencies to adopt specific objectives, criteria and procedures 
for evaluating public and private projects that are undertaken or approved by such agencies. 

DISCUSSION 

The Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency has prepared a proposed updated set of Local CEQA 
Guidelines for 2024 in compliance with CEQA’s requirements. These Guidelines reflect recent 
changes to CEQA. These Local CEQA Guidelines also provide instructions and forms for 
preparing all environmental documents required under CEQA (Attachment 2). 

On May 15, 2024, the Water Resources and Watershed Committee recommended through 
consensus to move this item forward for approval by the Board of Directors. This item was 
deemed suitable for the Consent Calendar. 

DATE: June 18, 2024 

TO: Water Resources and Watershed Committee 

FROM: Steve Cole 
Assistant General Manager 

SUBJECT: Approve Adoption of a Resolution Amending and Adopting New 2024 Local 
CEQA Guidelines for Implementing the California Environmental Quality Act 
(Public Resources Code §§ 21000 ET SEQ.) for Santa Clarita Valley Water 
Agency 

13

https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/SCVWA/engineering/environmental-review/SCV-Water-2024-Local-CEQA-Guidelines.pdf
https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/SCVWA/engineering/environmental-review/SCV-Water-2024-Local-CEQA-Guidelines.pdf
April Jacobs
Item 6.2



 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS 
 
No environmental impact is anticipated from amending the Local CEQA Guidelines. The Santa 
Clarita Valley Water Agency’s adoption of the attached Resolution is not a project under State 
CEQA Guidelines Section 15378(b)(5) because it involves an administrative activity and would 
not result in any environmental impacts. 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN NEXUS 
 
Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency is required to adopt Local CEQA Guidelines by the California 
Environmental Quality Act. This requirement aligns with Strategy D.1, achieving 100% 
compliance with all environmental regulations and standards, in SCV Water’s Strategic Plan.  
 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 

No fiscal impact is anticipated from amending the Local CEQA Guidelines. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That the Water Resources and Watershed Committee recommends that the Board of Directors 
approve the attached resolution (Attachment 1) amending and adopting new 2024 local CEQA 
guidelines for implementing the California Environmental Quality Act (Public Resources Code 
§§ 21000 ET SEQ.) for Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency. 
 
RGV 
 
Attachments 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 

14

April Jacobs
Matt Stone



RESOLUTION NO. SCV-______ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY 
AMENDING AND ADOPTING LOCAL GUIDELINES FOR IMPLEMENTING THE 
CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (PUBLIC RESOURCES CODE 

§§ 21000 ET SEQ.)

WHEREAS, the California Legislature has amended the California Environmental Quality Act 
(“CEQA”) (Pub. Resources Code §§ 21000 et seq.), the Natural Resources Agency has 
amended the State CEQA Guidelines (Cal. Code Regs, tit. 14, §§ 15000 et seq.), and the 
California courts have interpreted specific provisions of CEQA; and 

WHEREAS, Public Resources Code section 21082 requires all public agencies to adopt 
objectives, criteria and procedures for (1) the evaluation of public and private projects 
undertaken or approved by such public agencies, and (2) the preparation, if required, of 
environmental impact reports and negative declarations in connection with that evaluation; and 

WHEREAS, the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency must adopt its local guidelines for 
implementing CEQA to make them consistent with the current provisions and interpretations of 
CEQA and the State CEQA Guidelines. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency (“SCV 
Water”) hereby resolves as follows: 

SECTION 1. SCV Water hereby adopts the “2024 Local Guidelines for Implementing 
the California Environmental Quality Act,” a copy of which is on file at the offices of the SCV 
Water and is available for inspection by the public. 

SECTION 2. All prior actions of SCV Water enacting earlier guidelines are hereby 
repealed. 

ATTACHMENT 1

15



[This page intentionally left blank.] 

16



Notice of Exemption FORM “A” 

NOTICE OF EXEMPTION 

TO: 

☐ Office of Planning and Research
P. O. Box 3044, Room 113
Sacramento, CA  95812-3044

FROM: 
(Public 
Agency) 

Name: 

Address: 

Telephone: 

☐ Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

or

County Clerk (Include County name)

Address:

1. Project Title:

2. Project Applicant:

3. Project Location – Identify street address and cross
streets or attach a map showing project site
(preferably a USGS 15’ or 7 1/2’ topographical map
identified by quadrangle name):

4. (a) Project Location – City: (b) Project Location – County:

5. Description of nature, purpose, and beneficiaries of
Project:

6. Name of Public Agency approving project:

7. Name of Person or Agency undertaking the project,
including any person undertaking an activity that
receives financial assistance from the Public Agency
as part of the activity or the person receiving a lease,
permit, license, certificate, or other entitlement of use
from the Public Agency as part of the activity:

8. Exempt status:  (check one)

(a) ☐ Ministerial project. (Pub. Resources Code § 21080(b)(1); State CEQA 
Guidelines § 15268) 

(b) ☐ Not a project. State CEQA Guidelines 15050(c)(2)-(3) 

(c) ☐ Declared Emergency (Pub. Resources Code § 21080(b)(3); State CEQA 
Guidelines § 15269(a)) 

(d) ☐ Emergency Project. (Pub. Resources Code § 21080(b)(4); State CEQA 
Guidelines § 15269(b),(c)) 

(e) ☐ Categorical Exemption.
State type and section number: 

ATTACHMENT 2

17



Notice of Exemption  FORM “A” 
 

 (f) ☐ Statutory Exemption.   
State Code section number: 

 

 (g) ☐ Other.  Explanation:  

9. Reason why project was exempt:  

 

 
10. Lead Agency Contact Person: 

Telephone: 

 

 

11. If filed by applicant: Attach Certificate of Determination (Form “B”) before filing. 

12. Was a public hearing held by the Lead Agency to consider the exemption?  Yes  ☐   No ☐ 
If yes, the date of the public hearing was:  

 

________________________________ 
Signature Date:   

__________________________________ 
Name  Title:   

☐  Signed by Lead Agency ☐  Signed by Applicant  

 

Date Received for Filing:    

(Clerk Stamp Here)  

Authority cited:  Sections 21083 and 21110, Public Resources Code. 
Reference: Sections 21108, 21152, and 21152.1, Public Resources Code. 

18



Certificate of Determination  FORM “B” 
 

CERTIFICATE OF DETERMINATION 

(If Notice of Exemption filed by Project Applicant, Project Applicant must Attach to Notice of Exemption) 

1. Name or description of project:  

2. Project Location – Identify street 
address and cross streets or attach a 
map showing project site (preferably a 
USGS 15’ or 7 1/2’ topographical map 
identified by quadrangle name): 

 

3. Entity or person undertaking project: 
 

A.  

B. Other (Private)  

 (1) Name  

 (2) Address  

4. Staff Determination: 

The Lead Agency’s Staff, having undertaken and completed a preliminary review of this project in accordance 
with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and the Lead Agency’s Local Guidelines for 
Implementing CEQA has concluded that this project does not require further environmental assessment because: 

 a. ☐ The proposed action does not constitute a project under CEQA. 

 b. ☐ The project is a Ministerial Project. 

 c. ☐ The project is an Emergency Project. 

 d. ☐ The project constitutes a feasibility or planning study. 

 e. ☐ The project is categorically exempt. 

Applicable Exemption Class:  

 f. ☐ The project is statutorily exempt. 

Applicable Exemption:  

 g. ☐ The project is otherwise exempt on the 
following basis: 

 

 h. ☐ The project involves another public agency which constitutes the Lead Agency. 

Name of Lead Agency:  
 

Date:  Staff:  

 

19



Environmental Impact Assessment  FORM “C” 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(STAFF RECOMMENDATION FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY) 

1. Name or description of project:  

2. Project Location – Identify street 
address and cross streets or attach a 
map showing project site (preferably a 
USGS 15’ or 7 1/2’ topographical map 
identified by quadrangle name): 

 

3. Entity or Person undertaking project:  

 A.  

 B. Other (Private)  

  (1) Name:  

  (2) Address:  

4. Staff Determination: 

The Lead Agency’s staff, having undertaken and completed an Initial Study of this project in accordance with the 
Lead Agency’s “Local Guidelines for Implementing the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)” for the 
purpose of ascertaining whether the proposed project may have a significant effect on the environment, has reached 
the following conclusion: 

 a. ☐ The project could not have a significant effect on the environment; therefore, a Negative Declaration 
should be adopted. 

 b. ☐ The Initial Study identified potentially significant effects on the environment but revisions in the project 
plans or proposals made by or agreed to by the applicant would avoid the effects, or mitigate the effects 
to a point where clearly no significant effects would occur; therefore a Mitigated Negative Declaration 
should be adopted. 

 c. ☐ The project may have a significant effect on the environment; therefore, an Environmental Impact 
Report will be required. 

 

Date:  Staff:  
 

20



NOI to Adopt Neg. Dec., Mit. Neg. Dec. 
 

1 FORM “D” 

 

NOTICE OF INTENT TO ADOPT A NEGATIVE DECLARATION/ 
MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 

Notice is hereby given that the public agency named below has completed an Initial Study of the following described 
project at the following location:   

 

Public Agency:  

Project Name:  

Project Description:  

Project Location – Identify 
street address and cross streets 
or attach a map showing 
project site (preferably a 
USGS 15’ or 7 1/2’ 
topographical map identified 
by quadrangle name): 

 

This Initial Study was completed in accordance with the Lead Agency’s Guidelines for Implementing the California 
Environmental Quality Act.  This Initial Study was undertaken for the purpose of deciding whether the project may 
have a significant effect on the environment.  On the basis of such Initial Study, the Lead Agency’s Staff has 
concluded that the project will not have a significant effect on the environment, and has therefore prepared a Draft 
Negative Declaration/Mitigated Negative Declaration.  The Initial Study reflects the independent judgment of the Lead 
Agency. 

☐ The Project site IS on a list compiled pursuant to Government Code section 65962.5. 

☐ The Project site IS NOT on a list compiled pursuant to Government Code section 65962.5. 

☐ The proposed project IS considered a project of statewide, regional or areawide significance. 

☐ The proposed project IS NOT considered a project of statewide, regional or areawide significance. 

☐ The proposed project WILL affect highways or other facilities under the jurisdiction of the State Department 
of Transportation. 

☐ The proposed project WILL NOT affect highways or other facilities under the jurisdiction of the State 
Department of Transportation. 

☐ A scoping meeting WILL be held by the Lead Agency. 

☐ A scoping meeting WILL NOT be held by the Lead Agency. 

If the project meets the criteria requiring the scoping meeting, or if the agency voluntarily elects to hold such a 
meeting, the date, time and location of the scoping meeting are as follows: 

Date:   Time:   Location:   
 

Copies of the Initial Study and Draft Negative Declaration/Mitigated Negative Declaration are on file and are available 
for public review at the Lead Agency’s office, located at:  
 
The proposed Negative Declaration or Mitigated Negative Declaration can be obtained in electronic format by the 
following method: 

 

Lead Agency address:   
  

Comments will be received from  to  

21



NOI to Adopt Neg. Dec., Mit. Neg. Dec. 
 

2 FORM “D” 

 

Any person wishing to comment on this matter must submit such comments, in writing, to the Lead Agency prior to .  
Comments of all Responsible Agencies are also requested. 

 
The Lead Agency will consider the project and the Draft Negative Declaration/Mitigated Negative Declaration at its 
meeting on:   
  

Date:   Time:   

If the Lead Agency finds that the project will not have a significant effect on the environment, it may adopt the 
Negative Declaration/Mitigated Negative Declaration.  This means that the Lead Agency may proceed to consider the 
project without the preparation of an Environmental Impact Report. 

 

Date Received for Filing:    
Staff 

(Clerk Stamp Here)  
Title 

 

22



Negative Declaration  FORM “E” 
 

NEGATIVE DECLARATION 

1. Name or description of project:  

2. Project Location – Identify street 
address and cross streets or attach a 
map showing project site (preferably 
a USGS 15’ or 7 1/2’ topographical 
map identified by quadrangle name): 

 

3. Entity or Person undertaking project:  

 A. Entity  

  (1) Name:  

  (2) Address:  

 B. Other (Private)  

  (1) Name:  

  (2) Address:  

The Lead Agency, having reviewed the Initial Study of this proposed project, having reviewed the written comments 
received prior to the public meeting of the Lead Agency, and having reviewed the recommendation of the Lead 
Agency's Staff, does hereby find and declare that the proposed project will not have a significant effect on the 
environment.  A brief statement of the reasons supporting the Lead Agency’s findings are as follows: 

 

 

The Lead Agency hereby finds that the Negative Declaration reflects its independent judgment.  A copy of the Initial 
Study is attached. 

The location and custodian of the documents and any other material which constitute the record of proceedings upon 
which the Lead Agency based its decision to adopt this Negative Declaration are as follows: 

 

Phone No.:  

 

Date Received 
for Filing:    

 
Staff 

 

23



Notice of Determination 1 FORM “F” 
 

NOTICE OF DETERMINATION 

 

TO: ☐ Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 

or 

☐ County Clerk 

Address:  

 

FROM: Public Agency/Lead Agency Name: 

 

Address:  

 

 

Contact:  

Phone:   

TO:  ☐ Office of Planning and Research 
 1400 Tenth Street, Rm. 113 
 Sacramento, CA  95814 

Lead Agency (if different from above) 
 

 
Address: 

 
Contact:  

Phone:   

SUBJECT: Filing of Notice of Determination in compliance with Section 21108 or 21152 of the Public Resources 
Code. 

State Clearinghouse Number 
(If submitted to SCH): 

 

Project Title:  

Project Applicant (include address and telephone number): 

 

Specific Project Location – Identify street address and cross street or attach a map showing project site (preferably a 
USGS 15’ or 7 ½’ topographical map identified by quadrangle name):   

 

General Project Location (City and/or County):   

Project Description:   

Identify the person or entity undertaking the project, including any private applicant, any other person undertaking an 
activity that receives financial assistance from the Public Agency as part of the project, and any person receiving a 
lease, permit, license, certificate, or other entitlement of use from the Public Agency as part of the project. 

24



Notice of Determination 2 FORM “F” 
 

This is to advise that the (☐ Lead Agency or ☐ Responsible Agency) has approved the above described project 
on  and has made the following determinations regarding the above described project: 

1.  The project [ ☐ will ☐ will not] have a significant effect on the environment. 

2. ☐ An Environmental Impact Report was prepared and certified for this project pursuant to the provisions of 
CEQA and reflects the independent judgment of the Lead Agency. 

 ☐ A Negative Declaration was prepared for this project pursuant to the provisions of CEQA and reflects the 
independent judgment of the Lead Agency. 

 ☐ A Mitigated Negative Declaration was prepared for this project pursuant to the provisions of CEQA and 
reflects the independent judgment of the Lead Agency. 

3. ☐ Mitigation measures [ ☐ were ☐ were not ]made a condition of the approval of the project. 

4. ☐ A Mitigation Monitoring or Reporting Plan [ ☐ was ☐ was not] adopted for this project. 

5. ☐ A Statement of Overriding Considerations [ ☐ was ☐ was not] adopted for this project. 

6. ☐ Findings [ ☐ were ☐ were not] made pursuant to the provisions of CEQA. 

  This is to certify that the Final EIR with comments and responses and record of project approval, or the 
Negative Declaration, is available to General Public at: 

  Custodian: 

 

Location: 

 

 

 

Date:   ________________________________________ 
Signature 

Name:   

Title:   

 
 
 

Clerk’s File Stamp:   

 

 

 

 

Authority cited:  Sections 21083, Public Resources Code. 
Reference Section 21000-21174, Public Resources Code. 

25



Notice of Preparation 1 FORM “G” 
 

NOTICE OF PREPARATION 

TO: 

  

 

FROM:  Name:  

Address:  

Telephone:  

SUBJECT:  Notice of Preparation of a Draft Environmental Impact Report. 

The _________________ will be the Lead Agency and will prepare an environmental impact report for the project identified 
below.  We need to know the views of your agency as to the scope and content of the environmental information which is 
germane to your agency's statutory responsibilities in connection with the proposed project.  Your agency will need to use 
the EIR prepared by our agency when considering your permit or other approval for the project.   

The Project description, location, and the potential environmental effects are contained in the attached materials.  

☐ A copy of the Initial Study IS attached. 

☐ A copy of the Initial Study IS NOT attached. 

☐ The proposed project IS considered a project of statewide, regional or areawide significance.   

☐ The proposed project IS NOT considered a project of statewide, regional or areawide significance.   

☐ The proposed project WILL affect highways or other facilities under the jurisdiction of the State Department of 
Transportation.   

☐ The proposed project WILL NOT affect highways or other facilities under the jurisdiction of the State 
Department of Transportation.   

☐ A scoping meeting WILL be held by the Lead Agency.  

☐ A scoping meeting WILL NOT be held by the Lead Agency. 

If the project meets the criteria requiring the scoping meeting, or if the agency voluntarily elects to hold such a meeting, the 
date, time and location of the scoping meeting are as follows:  

Date:   Time:    Location:   

Due to the time limits mandated by State law, your response must be sent at the earliest possible date, but not later than 30 
days after receipt of this notice. 

Please send your response to  at the address shown above.  We will need the name of a contact person in your agency. 

Project Title:  

Project Location – Specific: Identify street 
address and cross street or attach a map 
showing project site (preferably a U.S.G.S. 
15’ or 7 ½’ topographical map identified by 
quadrangle name): 

 

Project Description:  

Project Applicant (if any):  

California Environmental Protection Agency 
Hazardous Waste List (if applicable): 

 

 

26



Notice of Preparation 2 FORM “G” 
 

Date:   Signature:  
______________________________ 

Name:  

Title:  

Telephone:  

Consulting firm retained to prepare draft EIR (if applicable): 

Name:  

Address:  

City/State/Zip:  

Contact Person:  

Reference:  California Code of Regulations, Title 14, (CEQA Guidelines) Sections 15082(a), 15103, 15375. 

27



Notice of Completion --Environmental Doc. Transmittal 1 FORM “H” 
 

NOTICE OF COMPLETION & ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENT TRANSMITTAL 

 
 SCH No.:  
For U.S. Mail:  State Clearinghouse, PO Box 3044, Sacramento, CA 95812-3044; (916) 445-0613 
For Hand Delivery/Street Address:  1400 Tenth Street, Sacramento, CA 95814 

PROJECT TITLE  

LEAD AGENCY 
 

CONTACT PERSON 
 

MAILING ADDRESS 
 

TELEPHONE 
 

CITY AND STATE 
 

ZIP CODE 
 

 COUNTY 
 

PROJECT LOCATION  

COUNTY 
 

CITY/NEAREST COMMUNITY 
 

LAT. / LONG.:    

CROSS STREETS 
 

ZIP CODE 
 

TOTAL ACRES 
 

ASSESSOR’S PARCEL NO. 
 

SECTION 
 

TOWNSHIP 
 

RANGE 
 

BASE 
 

WITHIN 2 MILES:  STATE HIGHWAY NO.   WITHIN 2 MILES:  WATERWAYS   

WITHIN 2 MILES:  AIRPORTS 
 

WITHIN 2 MILES:  RAILWAYS 
 

WITHIN 2 MILES:  SCHOOLS 
 

 

DOCUMENT TYPE   

CEQA NEPA OTHER 
☐ NOP ☐ Supplemental EIR ☐ NOI ☐ Joint Document 

☐ Early Cons ☐ Subsequent EIR ☐ EA ☐ Final Document 

☐ Neg Dec ☐ (Prior SCH No.):  ☐ Draft EIS ☐ Other:   

☐ Mit Neg Dec ☐ Other:   ☐ FONSI   

☐ Draft EIR       
 

LOCAL ACTION TYPE  

☐ General Plan Update ☐ Specific Plan ☐ Rezone ☐ Annexation 
☐ General Plan Amendment ☐ Master Plan ☐ Prezone ☐ Redevelopment 
☐ General Plan Element ☐ Planned Unit Development ☐ Use Permit ☐ Coastal Permit 
☐ Community Plan ☐ Site Plan ☐ Land Division (Subdivision, 

etc.) 
☐ Other:   

 

DEVELOPMENT TYPE 
☐ Residential: Units:   Acres:    ☐ Water Facilities: 

 
Type:   MGD: 

 
☐ Office: Sq. ft.   Acres:   Employees:    ☐ Transportation: 

 
Type:    

☐ Commercial: Sq. ft.   Acres:   Employees:    ☐ Mining: 
 

Mineral:   

☐ Industrial: Sq. ft.   Acres:   Employees:    ☐ Power: 
 

Type:   MW: 
 

☐ Educational:  ☐ Waste Treatment:  

☐ Recreational:  ☐ Hazardous Waste:  

   ☐ Other:   

28



Notice of Completion --Environmental Doc. Transmittal 2 FORM “H” 
 

PROJECT ISSUES DISCUSSED IN DOCUMENT: 
☐ Aesthetic/Visual ☐ Geologic/Seismic ☐ Toxic/Hazardous 
☐ Agricultural Land ☐ Minerals ☐ Traffic/Circulation 
☐ Air Quality ☐ Noise ☐ Vegetation 
☐ Archaeological/Historical ☐ Population/Housing Balance ☐ Water Quality 
☐ Biological Resources ☐ Public Services/Facilities ☐ Water Supply/Groundwater 
☐ Coastal Zone ☐ Recreation/Parks ☐ Wetland/Riparian 
☐ Drainage/Absorption ☐ Schools/Universities ☐ Wildlife 
☐ Economic/Jobs ☐ Septic Systems ☐ Growth Inducement 
☐ Fiscal ☐ Sewer Capacity ☐ Land Use 
☐ Flood Plain/Flooding ☐ Soil Erosion/Compaction/Grading ☐ Cumulative Effects 
☐ Forest Land/Fire Hazard ☐ Solid Waste ☐ Greenhouse Gases 
☐ Other:   

 

PRESENT LAND USE/ZONING/GENERAL PLAN USE DESIGNATION: 

 
 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION (please use a separate page if necessary) 

 

NOTE:  The State Clearinghouse will assign identification numbers for all new projects.  If a SCH number already exists for a project (e.g. Notice or Preparation or previous 
draft document) please fill in. 

Revised 2010 

 

 Reviewing Agencies Checklist Appendix C 

 Lead Agencies may recommend State Clearinghouse distribution by marking agencies below with an “X.” If you have already sent your document to the 
agency please denote that with an “S.” 

 
Air Resources Board 

 
Native American Heritage Commission 

 
Boating & Waterways, Department of 

 
Office of Historic Preservation 

 
California Emergency Management Agency 

 
Office of Public School Construction 

 
California Highway Patrol 

 
Parks & Recreation, Department of  

 
Caltrans District # 

 
Pesticide Regulation, Department of 

 
Caltrans Division of Aeronautics 

 
Public Utilities Commission 

 
Caltrans Planning 

 
Regional WQCB # 

 
Central Valley Flood Protection Board 

 
Resources Agency 

 
Coachella Valley Mountains Conservancy 

 
Resources Recycling and Recovery, Department of  

 
Coastal Commission 

 
S.F. Bay Conservation & Development Commission 

 
Colorado River Board 

 
San Gabriel & Lower Los Angeles Rivers & Mountains Conservancy 

 
Conservation, Department of 

 
San Joaquin River Conservancy 

 
Corrections, Department of 

 
Santa Monica Mountains Conservancy 

 
Delta Protection Commission 

 
State Lands Commission 

 
Education, Department of 

 
SWRCB:  Clean Water Grants 

 
Energy Commission 

 
SWRCB:  Water Quality 

 
Fish & Wildlife Region #  

 
SWRCB: Water Rights 

 
Food & Agriculture, Department of  

 
Tahoe Regional Planning Agency 

 
Forestry & Fire Protection, Department of  

 
Toxic Substances Control, Department of 

 
General Services, Department of 

 
Water Resources, Department of 

 
Health Services, Department of 

 
Other:   

 
Housing & Community Development 

 
Other:   

29



Notice of Completion --Environmental Doc. Transmittal 3 FORM “H” 
 

Local Public Review Period (to be filled in by lead agency): 

Starting Date:  Ending Date:  

Address where copies of the Draft EIR are available and a description of how the Draft EIR can be 
provided in an electronic format: 

 

 

Lead Agency (Complete if applicable): 

Consulting Firm:  

Address:  

City/State/Zip:  

Contact:  

Phone:  
 

Applicant:  

Address:  

City/State/Zip:  

Phone:  
 

Signature of Lead 
Agency Representative: _______________________________________ Date:   

Authority cited:  Section 21083, Public Resources Code.  Reference: Section 21161, Public Resources Code. 

For SCH Use Only: 
Date Received at SCH  

Date Review Starts  

Date to Agencies  

Date to SCH  

Clearance Date  

Notes:  

 

30



Environmental Information Form 1 FORM “I” 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL INFORMATION FORM 
(For private projects, this form must be completed by private project applicant to assist staff in completing Initial Study) 

Date Filed:  

GENERAL INFORMATION 

1. Developer or project sponsor Name:  

Address:  

2. Project Location – Identify street 
address and cross streets or attach 
a map showing project site 
(preferably a USGS 15’ or 7 1/2’ 
topographical map identified by 
quadrangle name): 

 

3. Assessor's Block and Lot Number  

4. Person to be contacted regarding 
this project 

Name:  

Address:  

Telephone:   

5. Permit Application Number for 
project 

 

6. Existing Zoning District  

7. Proposed use of site (project for 
which this form is filed) 

 

List and describe any other related permits and other public approvals required for this project, including those required 
by city, regional, state and federal agencies: 

 

8. Site size:  

9. Square footage:  

10. Number of floors of construction:  

11. Amount of off-street parking 
provided: 

 

12. Attach plans:  

13. Proposed scheduling:  

14. Associated projects:  

15. Anticipated incremental 
development: 

 

16. If residential, include the number of units, schedule of unit sizes, range of sales prices or rents and type of 
household size expected. 

 

31



Environmental Information Form 2 FORM “I” 
 

17. If commercial, indicate the type, whether neighborhood, city or regionally oriented, square footage of sales 
area and loading facilities. 

 

 

18. If industrial, indicate type, estimated employment per shift and loading facilities. 

 

 

19. If institutional, indicate the major function, estimated employment per shift, estimated occupancy, loading 
facilities and community benefits to be derived from the project. 

 

 

20. If the project involves a variance, conditional use or rezoning application, state this and indicate clearly why 
the application is required. 

 

Are the following items applicable to the project or its effects? 

Discuss below all items checked yes (attach additional sheets as necessary). 

YES NO   

☐ ☐ 21. Change in existing features of any bays, tidelands, beaches, lakes, hills or substantial alteration of 
ground contours. 

☐ ☐ 22. Change in scenic views or vistas from existing residential areas or public lands or roads. 

☐ ☐ 23. Change in pattern, scale or character of general area of project. 

☐ ☐ 24. Significant amounts of solid waste or litter. 

☐ ☐ 25. Change in dust, ash, smoke, fumes or odors in vicinity. 

☐ ☐ 26. Change in ocean, bay, lake, stream or ground water quality or quantity, or alteration of existing 
drainage patterns. 

☐ ☐ 27. Substantial change in existing noise or vibration levels in the vicinity. 

☐ ☐ 28. Site on filled land or on slope of 10 percent or more. 

☐ ☐ 29. Use or disposal of potentially hazardous materials, such as toxic substances, flammables or 
explosives. 

☐ ☐ 30. Substantial change in demand for municipal services (police, fire, water, sewage, etc.). 

☐ ☐ 31. Substantial increase in fossil fuel consumption (electricity, oil, natural gas, etc.). 

☐ ☐ 32. Relationship to a larger project or series of projects. 

☐ ☐ 33. Has a prior environmental impact report been prepared for a program, plan, policy or ordinance 
consistent with this project? 

☐ ☐ 34. If you answered yes to question 33, may this project cause significant effects on the environment 
that were not examined in the prior EIR? 

32



Environmental Information Form 3 FORM “I” 
 

YES NO   

☐ ☐ 35. Will the project require the import or export of soil?  If so, how much?  From where will import 
come?  To where will export go?  What is the proposed haul route? 

ENVIRONMENTAL SETTING 

36. Describe the project site as it exists before the project, including information on topography, soil stability, 
plants and animals, and any cultural, historical or scenic aspects.  Describe any existing structures on the site, 
and the use of the structures.  Attach photographs of the site.  (Snapshots or instant photos acceptable.) 

 

 
37. Describe the surrounding properties, including information on plants and animals and any cultural, historical or 

scenic aspects.  Indicate the type of land use (residential, commercial, etc.), intensity of land use (one-family, 
apartment houses, shops, department stores, etc.), and scale of development (height, frontage, set-back, rear 
yard, etc.).  Attach photographs of the vicinity.  (Snapshots or instant photos acceptable.) 

 

CERTIFICATION:  I hereby certify that the statements furnished above and in the attached exhibits present the data and 
information required for this initial evaluation to the best of my ability, and that the facts, statements, and information 
presented are true and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief. 

Date:     
Signature: 

 
For:   

 

33



Initial Study Form 
(Appendix G) 

Page 1 of 13 FORM “J” 

 

INITIAL STUDY 

NOTE: The following is a sample form that may be tailored by the Lead Agency to satisfy project circumstances.  
It may be used to meet the requirements for an initial study when the criteria set forth in the State and Local CEQA 
Guidelines have been met.  Substantial evidence of potential impacts that are not listed on this form must also be considered.  
The sample questions in this form are intended to encourage thoughtful assessment of impacts, and do not necessarily 
represent thresholds of significance.  

1. Project Title:    

2. Lead Agency Name and Address:   
 
  

3. Contact Person and Phone Number:   

4. Project Location:  . 

5. Project Sponsor's Name and Address: 
 
 
 

6. General Plan Designation:   7. Zoning:   

8. Description of Project:  (Describe the whole action involved, including but not limited to later phases of the project, 
and any secondary, support, or off-site features necessary for its implementation.  Attach additional sheet(s) if 
necessary.) 

 

9. Surrounding Land Uses and Setting:  (Briefly describe the project's surroundings.) 

 

10. Other public agencies whose approval is required (e.g., permits, financing approval, or participation agreement): 

 
 
 

 
11. Have California Native American tribes traditionally and culturally affiliated with the project area requested 

consultation pursuant to Public Resources Code section 21080.3.1?  If so, is there a plan for consultation that 
includes, for example, the determination of significance of impacts to tribal cultural resources, procedures 
regarding confidentiality, etc.? 
 
 

Note:  Conducting consultation early in the CEQA process allows tribal governments, lead agencies, and project 
proponents to discuss the level of environmental review, identify and address potential adverse impacts to tribal cultural 
resources, and reduce the potential for delay and conflict in the environmental review process.  (See Public Resources 
Code section 21080.3.2.)  Information may also be available from the California Native American Heritage 
Commission’s Sacred Lands File per Public Resources Code section 5097.96 and the California Historical Resources 
Information System administered by the California Office of Historic Preservation.  Please also note that Public 
Resources Code section 21082.3(c) contains provisions specific to confidentiality. 

  

34



Initial Study Form 
(Appendix G) 

Page 2 of 13 FORM “J” 

 

ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS POTENTIALLY AFFECTED: 

The environmental factors checked below would be potentially affected by this project, involving at least one impact that 
is a "Potentially Significant Impact" as indicated by the checklist on the following pages. 

☐ Aesthetics ☐ Agriculture/Forestry Resources ☐ Air Quality 

☐ Biological Resources ☐ Cultural Resources ☐ Geology / Soils 

☐ Greenhouse Gas Emissions ☐ Hazards & Hazardous Materials ☐ Hydrology / Water Quality 

☐ Land Use / Planning ☐ Mineral Resources ☐ Noise 

☐ Population / Housing ☐ Public Services ☐ Recreation 

☐ Transportation  ☐ Utilities / Service Systems ☐ Mandatory Findings of Significance 

☐ Tribal Cultural Resources ☐ Wildfire ☐ Energy 

DETERMINATION (To be completed by the Lead Agency): 

On the basis of this initial evaluation: 

☐ I find that the proposed project COULD NOT have a significant effect on the environment, and a NEGATIVE 
DECLARATION will be prepared. 

☐ I find that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the environment, there will not be a 
significant effect in this case because revisions in the project have been made by or agreed to by the project 
proponent. A MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be prepared. 

☐ I find that the proposed project MAY have a significant effect on the environment, and an ENVIRONMENTAL 
IMPACT REPORT is required. 

☐ I find that the proposed project MAY have a “potentially significant” or “potentially significant unless mitigated” 
impact on the environment, but at least one effect 1) has been adequately analyzed in an earlier document 
pursuant to applicable legal standards, and 2) has been addressed by mitigation measures based on the earlier 
analysis as described on attached sheets.  An ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is required, but it must 
analyze only the effects that remain to be addressed. 

☐ I find that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the environment, because all 
potentially significant effects (a) have been analyzed adequately in an earlier EIR or NEGATIVE 
DECLARATION pursuant to applicable standards, and (b) have been avoided or mitigated pursuant to that 
earlier EIR or NEGATIVE DECLARATION, including revisions or mitigation measures that are imposed upon 
the proposed project, nothing further is required. 

 
________________________________________ 
Signature 

 
Date 

 
Printed Name 

 
For 

EVALUATION OF ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS: 

1) A brief explanation is required for all answers except “No Impact” answers that are adequately supported by the 
information sources a Lead Agency cites in the parentheses following each question.  A “No Impact” answer is 
adequately supported if the referenced information sources show that the impact simply does not apply to projects 
like the one involved (e.g. the project falls outside a fault rupture zone).  A “No Impact” answer should be explained 
where it is based on project-specific factors as well as general standards (e.g. the project will not expose sensitive 
receptors to pollutants, based on a project-specific screening analysis). 

2) All answers must take account of the whole action involved, including off-site as well as on-site, cumulative as well 
as project-level, indirect as well as direct, and construction as well as operational impacts. 

3) Once the Lead Agency has determined that a particular physical impact may occur, then the checklist answers must 
indicate whether the impact is potentially significant, less than significant with mitigation, or less than significant. 

35



Initial Study Form 
(Appendix G) 

Page 3 of 13 FORM “J” 

 

“Potentially Significant Impact” is appropriate if there is substantial evidence that an effect is significant.  If there are 
one or more "Potentially Significant Impact" entries when the determination is made, an EIR is required. 

4) “Negative Declaration:  Less Than Significant With Mitigation Incorporated” applies where the incorporation of 
mitigation measures has reduced an effect from “Potentially Significant Impact” to a “Less than Significant Impact.” 
The Lead Agency must describe the mitigation measures, and briefly explain how they reduce the effect to a less than 
significant level (mitigation measures from Section XVII, “Earlier Analyses,” may be cross-referenced). 

5) Earlier analyses may be used where, pursuant to the tiering, program EIR, or other CEQA process, an effect has been 
adequately analyzed in an earlier EIR or negative declaration.  Section 15063(c)(3)(D).  In this case, a brief 
discussion should identify the following: 

a) Earlier Analyses Used.  Identify and state where they are available for review. 

b) Impacts Adequately Addressed.  Identify which effects from the above checklist were within the scope of 
and adequately analyzed in an earlier document pursuant to applicable legal standards, and state whether 
such effects were addressed by mitigation measures based on the earlier analysis. 

c) Mitigation Measures.  For effects that are “Less than Significant with Mitigation Measures Incorporated,” 
describe the mitigation measures which were incorporated or refined from the earlier document and the 
extent to which they address site-specific conditions for the project. 

6) Lead agencies are encouraged to incorporate into the checklist references to information sources for potential impacts 
(e.g. general plans, zoning ordinances).  Reference to a previously prepared or outside document should, where 
appropriate, include a reference to the page or pages where the statement is substantiated. 

7) Supporting Information Sources.  A source list should be attached, and other sources used or individuals contacted 
should be cited in the discussion. 

8) This is only a suggested form, and lead agencies are free to use different formats; however, lead agencies should 
normally address the questions from this checklist that are relevant to a project's environmental effects in whatever 
format is selected. 

9) The explanation of each issue should identify: 

a) the significance criteria or threshold, if any, used to evaluate each question; and 

b) the mitigation measure identified, if any, to reduce the impact to less than significance. 

SAMPLE QUESTION 

Issues: 

 

Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 
With 
Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

No 
Impact 

I. AESTHETICS. Except as provided in public resources code section 21099, would the project: 

a) Have a substantial adverse effect on a scenic 
vista? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

b) Substantially damage scenic resources, 
including, but not limited to, trees, rock 
outcroppings, and historic buildings within a 
state scenic highway? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

36



Initial Study Form 
(Appendix G) 

Page 4 of 13 FORM “J” 

 

 

Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 
With 
Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

No 
Impact 

c) In non-urbanized areas, substantially degrade 
the existing visual character or quality of 
public views of the site and its surroundings?  
(Public views are those that are experienced 
from publicly accessible vantage point).  If the 
project is in an urbanized area, would the 
project conflict with applicable zoning and 
other regulations governing scenic quality?) 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

d) Create a new source of substantial light or 
glare which would adversely affect day or 
nighttime views in the area? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

II. AGRICULTURE AND FOREST RESOURCES.  In determining whether impacts to agricultural resources are 
significant environmental effects, lead agencies may refer to the California Agricultural Land Evaluation and Site 
Assessment Model (1997) prepared by the California Dept. of Conservation as an optional model to use in 
assessing impacts on agriculture and farmland.  in determining whether impacts to forest resources, including 
timberland, are significant environmental effects, lead agencies may refer to information compiled by the California 
Department of Forestry and Fire Protection regarding the state’s inventory of forest land, including  the Forest and 
Range Assessment Project and the Forest Legacy Assessment project; and forest carbon measurement methodology 
provided in Forest Protocols adopted by the California Air Resources Board. Would the project: 

a) Convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, 
or Farmland of Statewide Importance 
(Farmland), as shown on the maps prepared 
pursuant to the Farmland Mapping and 
Monitoring Program of the California 
Resources Agency, to non-agricultural use? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

b) Conflict with existing zoning for agricultural 
use, or a Williamson Act contract? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

c) Conflict with existing zoning for, or cause 
rezoning of, forest land (as defined in Public 
Resources Code section 12220(g)), timberland 
(as defined by Public Resources Code section 
4526), or timberland zoned Timberland 
Production (as defined by Government Code 
section 51104(g))? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

d) Result in the loss of forest land or conversion 
of forest land to non-forest use? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

e) Involve other changes in the existing 
environment which, due to their location or 
nature, could result in conversion of 
Farmland, to non-agricultural use or 
conversion of forest land to non-forest use? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

III.  AIR QUALITY. Where available, the significance criteria established by the applicable air quality management 
district or air pollution control district may be relied upon to make the following determinations.  Would the project: 

a) Conflict with or obstruct implementation of 
the applicable air quality plan? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

37



Initial Study Form 
(Appendix G) 

Page 5 of 13 FORM “J” 

 

 

Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 
With 
Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

No 
Impact 

b) Result in a cumulatively considerable net 
increase of any criteria pollutant for which the 
project region is non-attainment under an 
applicable federal or state ambient air quality 
standard? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

c) Expose sensitive receptors to substantial 
pollutant concentrations? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

d) Result in other emissions (such as those 
leading to odors) adversely affecting a 
substantial number of people? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

IV.  BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES. Would the project:     

a) Have a substantial adverse effect, either 
directly or through habitat modifications, on 
any species identified as a candidate, 
sensitive, or special status species in local or 
regional plans, policies, or regulations, or by 
the California Department of Fish and Game 
or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

b) Have a substantial adverse effect on any 
riparian habitat or other sensitive natural 
community identified in local or regional 
plans, policies, regulations or by the 
California Department of Fish and Game or 
U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

c) Have a substantial adverse effect on state or 
federally protected wetlands (including, but 
not limited to, marsh, vernal pool, coastal, 
etc.) through direct removal, filling, 
hydrological interruption, or other means? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

d) Interfere substantially with the movement of 
any native resident or migratory fish or 
wildlife species or with established native 
resident or migratory wildlife corridors, or 
impede the use of native wildlife nursery 
sites? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

e) Conflict with any local policies or ordinances 
protecting biological resources, such as a tree 
preservation policy or ordinance? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

f) Conflict with the provisions of an adopted 
Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural 
Community Conservation Plan, or other 
approved local, regional, or state habitat 
conservation plan? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

38



Initial Study Form 
(Appendix G) 

Page 6 of 13 FORM “J” 

 

 

Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 
With 
Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

No 
Impact 

V.  CULTURAL RESOURCES. Would the project:     

a) Cause a substantial adverse change in the 
significance of a historical resource pursuant 
to § 15064.5? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

b) Cause a substantial adverse change in the 
significance of an archaeological resource 
pursuant to § 15064.5? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

c) Disturb any human remains, including those 
interred outside of dedicated cemeteries? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

VI.  ENERGY.  Would the project:     

a) Result in potentially significant environmental 
impact due to wasteful, inefficient, or 
unnecessary consumption of energy resources, 
during project construction or operation? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

b) Conflict with or obstruct a state or local plan 
for renewable energy or energy efficiency? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

VII.  GEOLOGY AND SOILS.  Would the project:     

a) Directly or indirectly cause potential 
substantial adverse effects, including the risk 
of loss, injury or death involving: 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

i) Rupture of a known earthquake fault, 
as delineated on the most recent 
Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault 
Zoning Map issued by the State 
Geologist for the area or based on 
other substantial evidence of a 
known fault?  Refer to Division of 
Mines and Geology Special 
Publication 42. 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

ii) Strong seismic ground shaking? ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

iii) Seismic-related ground failure, 
including liquefaction? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

iv) Landslides? ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

b) Result in substantial soil erosion or the loss of 
topsoil? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

39



Initial Study Form 
(Appendix G) 

Page 7 of 13 FORM “J” 

 

 

Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 
With 
Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

No 
Impact 

c) Be located on a geologic unit or soil that is 
unstable, or that would become unstable as a 
result of the project, and potentially result in 
on- or off-site landslide, lateral spreading, 
subsidence, liquefaction or collapse? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

d) Be located on expansive soil, as defined in 
Table 18-1-B of the Uniform Building Code, 
creating substantial direct or indirect risks to 
life or property? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

e) Have soils incapable of adequately supporting 
the use of septic tanks or alternative waste 
water disposal systems where sewers are not 
available for the disposal of waste water? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

f) Directly or indirectly destroy a unique 
paleontological resource or site or unique 
geologic feature? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

VIII.  GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS.  Would the project: 
a) Generate greenhouse gas emissions, either 

directly or indirectly, that may have a 
significant impact on the environment? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

b) Conflict with an applicable plan, policy or 
regulation adopted for the purpose of reducing 
the emission of greenhouse gases? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

IX.  HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS. Would the project: 
a) Create a significant hazard to the public or the 

environment through the routine transport, 
use, or disposal of hazardous materials? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

b) Create a significant hazard to the public or the 
environment through reasonably foreseeable 
upset and accident conditions involving the 
release of hazardous materials into the 
environment? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

c) Emit hazardous emissions or handle 
hazardous or acutely hazardous materials, 
substances, or waste within one-quarter mile 
of an existing or proposed school? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 
 

   

d) Be located on a site which is included on a list 
of hazardous materials sites compiled 
pursuant to Government Code section 65962.5 
and, as a result, would it create a significant 
hazard to the public or the environment? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

40



Initial Study Form 
(Appendix G) 

Page 8 of 13 FORM “J” 

 

 

Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 
With 
Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

No 
Impact 

e) For a project located within an airport land use 
plan or, where such a plan has not been 
adopted, within two miles of a public airport 
or public use airport, would the project result 
in a safety hazard or excessive noise for 
people residing or working in the project area? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

f) Impair implementation of or physically 
interfere with an adopted emergency response 
plan or emergency evacuation plan? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

g) Expose people or structures, either directly or 
indirectly, to a significant risk of loss, injury 
or death involving wildland fires? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

X.  HYDROLOGY AND WATER QUALITY.  Would the project: 
a) Violate any water quality standards or waste 

discharge requirements or otherwise 
substantially degrade surface or ground water 
quality? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

b) Substantially decrease groundwater supplies 
or interfere substantially with groundwater 
recharge such that the project may impede 
sustainable groundwater management of the 
basin? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

c) Substantially alter the existing drainage 
pattern of the site or area, including through 
the alteration of the course of a stream or river 
or through the addition of impervious 
surfaces, in a manner which would: 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

i) result in substantial erosion or 
siltation on- or off-site; 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

ii) substantially increase the rate or 
amount of surface runoff in a manner 
which would result in flooding on- or 
offsite; 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

iii) create or contribute runoff water 
which would exceed the capacity of 
existing or planned stormwater 
drainage systems or provide 
substantial additional sources of 
polluted runoff; or 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

iv) impede or redirect flood flows? ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

d) In flood hazard, tsunami, or seiche zones, risk 
release of pollutants due to project 
inundation? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

41



Initial Study Form 
(Appendix G) 

Page 9 of 13 FORM “J” 

 

 

Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 
With 
Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

No 
Impact 

e) Conflict with or obstruct implementation of a 
water quality control plan or sustainable 
groundwater management plan? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

XI.  LAND USE AND PLANNING. Would the project: 
a) Physically divide an established community? ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

b) Cause a significant environmental impact due 
to a conflict with any land use plan, policy, or 
regulation adopted for the purpose of avoiding 
or mitigating an environmental effect? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

XII.  MINERAL RESOURCES. Would the project:     

a) Result in the loss of availability of a known 
mineral resource that would be of value to the 
region and the residents of the state? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

b) Result in the loss of availability of a locally-
important mineral resource recovery site 
delineated on a local general plan, specific 
plan or other land use plan? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

XIII.  NOISE.  Would the project result in:     

a) Generation of a substantial temporary or 
permanent increase in ambient noise levels in 
the vicinity of the project in excess of 
standards established in the local general plan 
or noise ordinance, or applicable standards of 
other agencies? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

b) Generation of excessive groundborne 
vibration or groundborne noise levels? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

c) For a project located within the vicinity of a 
private airstrip or an airport land use plan or, 
where such a plan has not been adopted, 
within two miles of a public airport or public 
use airport, would the project expose people 
residing or working in the project area to 
excessive noise levels? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

XIV.  POPULATION AND HOUSING.  Would the project: 
a) Induce substantial unplanned population 

growth in an area, either directly (for example, 
by proposing new homes and businesses) or 
indirectly (for example, through extension of 
road or other infrastructure)? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

42



Initial Study Form 
(Appendix G) 

Page 10 of 13 FORM “J” 

 

 

Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 
With 
Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

No 
Impact 

b) Displace substantial numbers of existing 
people or housing, necessitating the 
construction of replacement housing 
elsewhere? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

XV.  PUBLIC SERVICES.  Would the project:     

a) Result in substantial adverse physical impacts 
associated with the provision of new or 
physically altered governmental facilities, 
need for new or physically altered 
governmental facilities, the construction of 
which could cause significant environmental 
impacts, in order to maintain acceptable 
service ratios, response times or other 
performance objectives for any of the public 
services: 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

Fire protection? ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

Police protection? ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

Schools? ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

Parks? ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

Other public facilities? ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

XVI.  RECREATION.      

a) Would the project increase the use of existing 
neighborhood and regional parks or other 
recreational facilities such that substantial 
physical deterioration of the facility would 
occur or be accelerated? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

b) Does the project include recreational facilities 
or require the construction or expansion of 
recreational facilities which have an adverse 
physical effect on the environment? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

XVII.  TRANSPORTATION. Would the project:     

a) Conflict with a program plan, ordinance or 
policy addressing the circulation system, 
including transit, roadway, bicycle and 
pedestrian facilities?  

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

b) Conflict or be inconsistent with CEQA 
Guidelines section 15064.3, subdivision (b)? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

43



Initial Study Form 
(Appendix G) 

Page 11 of 13 FORM “J” 

 

 

Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 
With 
Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

No 
Impact 

c) Substantially increase hazards due to a 
geometric design feature (e.g., sharp curves or 
dangerous intersections) or incompatible uses 
(e.g., farm equipment)? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

d) Result in inadequate emergency access? ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

XVIII. TRIBAL CULTURAL RESOURCES     

a) Would the project cause a substantial adverse 
change in the significance of a tribal cultural 
resource, defined in Public Resources Code 
section 21074 as either a site, feature, place, 
cultural landscape that is geographically 
defined in terms of the size and scope of the 
landscape, sacred place, or object with cultural 
value to a California Native American tribe, 
and that is: 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

i) Listed or eligible for listing in the 
California Register of Historical 
Resources, or in a local register of 
historical resources as defined in 
Public Resources Code section 
5020.1(k), or 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

ii) A resource determined by the lead 
agency, in its discretion and 
supported by substantial evidence, 
to be significant pursuant to 
criteria set forth in subdivision (c) 
of Public Resources Code section 
5024.1.  In applying the criteria set 
forth in subdivision (c) of Public 
Resources Code section 5024.1, 
the lead agency shall consider the 
significance of the resource to a 
California Native American tribe. 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

XIX. UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS.  
Would the project: 

    

a) Require or result in the relocation or 
construction of new or expanded water, 
wastewater treatment or storm water drainage, 
electric power, natural gas, or 
telecommunications facilities, the construction 
or relocation of which could cause significant 
environmental effects? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

b) Have sufficient water supplies available to 
serve the project and reasonably foreseeable 
future development during normal, dry and 
multiple dry years?   

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

44



Initial Study Form 
(Appendix G) 

Page 12 of 13 FORM “J” 

 

 

Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 
With 
Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

No 
Impact 

c) Result in a determination by the wastewater 
treatment provider which serves or may serve 
the project that it has adequate capacity to 
serve the project's projected demand in 
addition to the provider's existing 
commitments? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

d) Generate solid waste in excess of State or 
local standards, or in excess of the capacity of 
local infrastructure, or otherwise impair the 
attainment of solid waste reduction goals? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

e) Comply with federal, state, and local 
management and reduction statutes and 
regulations related to solid waste? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

XX. WILDFIRE.  If located in or near state responsibility areas or lands classified as very high fire hazard 
severity zones, would the project: 

a) Substantially impair an adopted 
emergency response plan or emergency 
evacuation plan? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

b) Due to slope, prevailing winds, and 
other factors, exacerbate wildfire risks, 
and thereby expose project occupants 
to, pollutant concentrations from a 
wildfire or the uncontrolled spread of a 
wildfire? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

c) Require the installation or maintenance 
of associated infrastructure (such as 
roads, fuel breaks, emergency water 
sources, power lines or other utilities) 
that may exacerbate fire risk or that 
may result in temporary or ongoing 
impacts to the environment? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

d) Expose people or structures to 
significant risks, including downslope 
or downstream flooding or landslides, 
as a result of runoff, post-fire slope 
instability, or drainage changes? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

XXI.  MANDATORY FINDINGS OF SIGNIFICANCE. (State CEQA Guidelines section 15065(a).) 

45



Initial Study Form 
(Appendix G) 

Page 13 of 13 FORM “J” 

 

 

Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 
With 
Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

No 
Impact 

a) Does the project have the potential to 
substantially degrade the quality of the 
environment, substantially reduce the habitat 
of a fish or wildlife species, cause a fish or 
wildlife population to drop below self-
sustaining levels, threaten to eliminate a plant 
or animal community, substantially reduce the 
number or restrict the range of a rare or 
endangered plant or animal or eliminate 
important examples of the major periods of 
California history or prehistory? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

b) Does the project have the potential to achieve 
short-term environmental goals to the 
disadvantage of long-term environmental 
goals? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

c) Does the project have impacts that are 
individually limited, but cumulatively 
considerable?  (“Cumulatively considerable” 
means that the incremental effects of a project 
are considerable when viewed in connection 
with the effects of past projects, the effects of 
other current project, and the effects of 
probable future projects.) 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

d) Does the project have environmental effects 
which will cause substantial adverse effects on 
human beings, either directly or indirectly? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

Note:  Authority cited:  Public Resources Code sections 21083, 21083.05, 21083.09.   

Reference: Gov. Code section 65088.4; Public Resources Code sections 21073, 21074, 21080(c), 21080.1, 21080.3, 
21080.3.1, 21080.3.2, 21082.3, 21083, 21083.3, 21083.5, 21084.2, 21084.3, 21093, 21094, 21095 and 21151; Sundstrom 
v. County of Mendocino (1988) 202 Cal.App.3d 296; Leonoff v. Monterey County Board of Supervisors (1990) 222 
Cal.App.3d 1337; Eureka Citizens for Responsible Govt. v. City of Eureka (2007) 147 Cal.App.4th 357; Protect the 
Historic Amador Waterways v. Amador Water Agency (2004) 116 Cal.App.4th 1099, 1109; San Franciscans Upholding 
the Downtown Plan v. City and County of San Francisco (2002) 102 Cal.App.4th 656. 

46



Supplemental Environmental Checklist Form 1 FORM “J-1” 
 

SUPPLEMENTAL ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST FORM 

FOR USE WHEN REVIEWING SUBSEQUENT DISCRETIONARY ACTIONS PURSUANT TO A 
PREVIOUSLY APPROVED OR CERTIFIED ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENT 

1. Project Title:    

2. Lead Agency Name and Address:   
 
  

3. Contact Person and Phone Number:   

4. Project Location:   

5. Project Sponsor's Name and Address: 
 
 
 

6. General Plan Designation:   7. Zoning:   

8. Previous Environmental Document: Please describe the previously adopted ND or MND or the previously certified 
EIR (include the date the document was adopted or certified, the date the project was approved, the date the NOD 
was filed with the County, and a summary of potentially significant effects identified in the CEQA document).   

 

9. Description of Project:  (Describe the previously approved project and the authorized entitlements/ discretionary 
actions. Describe whether the subsequent discretionary action now proposed was considered in the previously 
approved CEQA document and describe any differences between the proposed action and the approved project.) 

 

10. Surrounding Land Uses and Setting:  (Briefly describe the project's surroundings.) 

 

11. Other public agencies whose approval is required (e.g., permits, financing approval, or participation agreement): 

 
 
 

 
12. Have California Native American tribes traditionally and culturally affiliated with the project area requested 

consultation pursuant to Public Resources Code section 21080.3.1?  If so, has consultation begun? 
 
 

Note:  Conducting consultation early in the CEQA process allows tribal governments, lead agencies, and project 
proponents to discuss the level of environmental review, identify and address potential adverse impacts to tribal cultural 
resources, and reduce the potential for delay and conflict in the environmental review process.  (See Public Resources 
Code section 21083.3.2.)  Information may also be available from the California Native American Heritage 
Commission’s Sacred Lands File per Public Resources Code section 5097.96 and the California Historical Resources 
Information System administered by the California Office of Historic Preservation.  Please also note that Public 
Resources Code section 21082.3(c) contains provisions specific to confidentiality. 

  

47



Supplemental Environmental Checklist Form 2 FORM “J-1” 
 

NEW SIGNIFICANT ENVIRONMENTAL EFFECTS OR SUBSTANTIALLY MORE SEVERE SIGNIFICANT 
ENVIRONMENTAL EFFECTS COMPARED TO THOSE IDENTIFIED IN THE PREVIOUS CEQA DOCUMENT.     
The subject areas checked below were determined to be new significant environmental effects or to be previously 
identified effects that have a substantial increase in severity either due to a change in project, change in circumstances or 
new information of substantial importance, as indicated by the checklist and discussion on the following pages. 

☐ Aesthetics ☐ Agriculture Resources ☐ Air Quality 

☐ Biological Resources ☐ Cultural Resources ☐ Geology / Soils 

☐ Hazards & Hazardous Materials ☐ Hydrology / Water Quality ☐ Land Use / Planning 

☐ Mineral Resources ☐ Noise ☐ Population / Housing 

☐ Public Services ☐ Recreation ☐ Transportation 

☐ Utilities / Service Systems ☐ Mandatory Findings of Significance ☐ Greenhouse Gases 

☐ Energy ☐ Wildfire ☐ Tribal Cultural Resources 

DETERMINATION (To be completed by the Lead Agency): 

On the basis of this initial evaluation: 

☐ No substantial changes are proposed in the project and there are no substantial changes in the circumstances 
under which the project will be undertaken that will require major revisions to the previous approved ND or 
MND or certified EIR due to the involvement of new significant environmental effects or a substantial increase 
in the severity of previously identified significant effects.  Also, there is no “new information of substantial 
importance” as that term is used in CEQA Guidelines Section 15162(a)(3).  Therefore, the previously adopted 
ND or MND or previously certified EIR adequately discusses the potential impacts of the project without 
modification.  

☐ No substantial changes are proposed in the project and there are no substantial changes in the circumstances 
under which the project will be undertaken that will require major revisions to the previous approved ND or 
MND or certified EIR due to the involvement of new significant environmental effects or a substantial increase 
in the severity of previously identified significant effects.  Also, there is no “new information of substantial 
importance” as that term is used in CEQA Guidelines Section 15162(a)(3).  Therefore, the previously adopted 
ND, MND or previously certified EIR adequately discusses the potential impacts of the project; however, minor 
changes require the preparation of an ADDENDUM. 

☐ Substantial changes are proposed in the project or there are substantial changes in the circumstances under which 
the project will be undertaken that will require major revisions to the previous ND, MND or EIR due to the 
involvement of significant new environmental effects or a substantial increase in the severity of previously 
identified significant effects.  Or, there is “new information of substantial importance,” as that term is used in 
CEQA Guidelines Section 15162(a)(3).  However, all new potentially significant environmental effects or 
substantial increases in the severity of previously identified significant effects are clearly reduced to below a 
level of significance through the incorporation of mitigation measures agreed to by the project applicant. 
Therefore, a SUBSEQUENT MND is required. 

☐ Substantial changes are proposed in the project or there are substantial changes in the circumstances under which 
the project will be undertaken that will require major revisions to the previous environmental document due to 
the involvement of significant new environmental effects or a substantial increase in the severity of previously 
identified significant effects.  Or, there is “new information of substantial importance,” as that term is used in 
CEQA Guidelines Section 15162(a)(3).  However, only minor changes or additions or changes would be 
necessary to make the previous EIR adequate for the project in the changed situation.  Therefore, a 
SUPPLEMENTAL EIR is required. 

☐ Substantial changes are proposed in the project or there are substantial changes in the circumstances under which 
the project will be undertaken that will require major revisions to the previous environmental document due to 
the involvement of significant new environmental effects or a substantial increase in the severity of previously 

48



Supplemental Environmental Checklist Form 3 FORM “J-1” 
 

identified significant effects.  Or, there is “new information of substantial importance,” as that term is used in 
CEQA Guidelines Section 15162(a)(3).  Therefore, a SUBSEQUENT EIR is required. 

 
  
Signature 

 
Date 

. 
Printed Name 

 
For 

EVALUATION OF ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS: 

1. A finding of “No New Impact/No Impact” means that the potential impact was fully analyzed and/or mitigated in the 
prior CEQA document and no new or different impacts will result from the proposed activity.   A brief explanation is 
required for all answers except "No New Impact/No Impact" answers that are adequately supported by the 
information sources a lead agency cites in the parentheses following each question.  A "No New Impact/No Impact" 
answer is adequately supported if the referenced information sources show that the impact simply does not apply to 
projects like the one involved (e.g. the project falls outside a fault rupture zone).  A "No New Impact/No Impact" 
answer should be explained where it is based on project-specific factors as well as general standards (e.g. the project 
will not expose sensitive receptors to pollutants, based on a project-specific screening analysis). 

2. A finding of “New Mitigation is Required” means that the project may have a new potentially significant impact on 
the environment or a substantially more severe impact than analyzed in the previously approved or certified CEQA 
document and that new mitigation is required to address the impact.   

3. A finding of “New Potentially Significant Impact” means that the project may have a new potentially significant 
impact on the environment or a substantially more severe impact than analyzed in the previously approved or 
certified CEQA document that cannot be mitigated to below a level of significance or be avoided. 

4. A finding of “Reduced Impact” means that a previously infeasible mitigation measure is now available, or a 
previously infeasible alternative is now available that will reduce a significant impact identified in the previously 
prepared environmental document.  

5. All answers must take account of the whole action involved, including off-site as well as on-site, cumulative as well 
as project-level, indirect as well as direct, and construction as well as operational impacts. 

6. Earlier analyses may be used where, pursuant to the tiering, program EIR, or other CEQA process, an effect has been 
adequately analyzed in an earlier EIR or negative declaration.  Section 15063(c)(3)(D).  In this case, a brief 
discussion should identify the following: 

a. Earlier Analyses Used.  Identify and state where they are available for review. 

b. Impacts Adequately Addressed.  Identify which effects from the above checklist were within the scope of and 
adequately analyzed in an earlier document pursuant to applicable legal standards, and state whether such effects 
were addressed by mitigation measures based on the earlier analysis.   Describe the mitigation measures which 
were incorporated or refined from the earlier document and the extent to which they address site-specific 
conditions for the proposed action. 

c. Infeasible Mitigation Measures.  Since the previous EIR was certified or previous ND or MND was adopted, 
discuss any mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be feasible that would in fact be feasible 
or that are considerably different from those previously analyzed and would substantially reduce one or more 
significant effects of the project, but the project proponents decline to adopt the mitigation measures or 
alternatives. 

d. Changes in Circumstances.  Since the previous EIR was certified or previous ND or MND was adopted, discuss 
any changes in the project, changes in circumstances under which the project is undertaken and/or "new 
information of substantial importance" that cause a change in conclusion regarding one or more effects discussed 
in the original document. 

49



Supplemental Environmental Checklist Form 4 FORM “J-1” 
 

7. Lead agencies are encouraged to incorporate into the checklist references to information sources for potential impacts 
(e.g. general plans, zoning ordinances).  Reference to a previously prepared or outside document should, where 
appropriate, include a reference to the page or pages where the statement is substantiated. 

8. Supporting Information Sources.  A source list should be attached, and other sources used or individuals contacted 
should be cited in the discussion. 

9. This is only a suggested form, and lead agencies are free to use different formats; however, lead agencies should 
normally address the questions from this checklist that are relevant to a project's environmental effects in whatever 
format is selected. 

10. The explanation of each issue should identify: 

a. the significance criteria or threshold, if any, used to evaluate each question;  

b. differences between the proposed activity and the previously approved project described in the approved ND or 
MND or certified EIR; and 

c. the previously approved mitigation measure identified, if any, to reduce the impact to less than significance. 

SAMPLE QUESTION 

 

New 
Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

New 
Mitigation 
is Required 

No New 
Impact/No 
Impact 

Reduced 
Impact 

I.  AESTHETICS.  Except as provided in Public Resources Code section 21099, would the project: 
a) Have a substantial adverse effect on a 

scenic vista? 
☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

b) Substantially damage scenic resources, 
including, but not limited to, trees, rock 
outcroppings, and historic buildings within 
a state scenic highway? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

c) In non-urbanized areas, substantially 
degrade the existing visual character or 
quality of public views of the site and its 
surroundings?  (Public views are those that 
are experienced from publicly accessible 
vantage point).  If the project is in an 
urbanized area, would the project conflict 
with applicable zoning and other regulations 
governing scenic quality?) 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

d) Create a new source of substantial light or 
glare which would adversely affect day or 
nighttime views in the area? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

II.  AGRICULTURE AND FOREST RESOURCES.  In determining whether impacts to agricultural resources are 
significant environmental effects, lead agencies may refer to the California Agricultural Land Evaluation and Site 
Assessment Model (1997) prepared by the California Dept. of Conservation as an optional model to use in assessing 
impacts on agriculture and farmland.  In determining whether impacts to forest resources, including timberland, are 
significant environmental effects, lead agencies may refer to information compiled by the California Department of 
Forestry and Fire Protection regarding the state’s inventory of forest land, including  the Forest and Range Assessment 
Project and the Forest Legacy Assessment project; and forest carbon measurement methodology provided in Forest 
protocols adopted by the California Air Resources Board. -- Would the project: 

50



Supplemental Environmental Checklist Form 5 FORM “J-1” 
 

 

New 
Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

New 
Mitigation 
is Required 

No New 
Impact/No 
Impact 

Reduced 
Impact 

a) Convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, 
or Farmland of Statewide Importance 
(Farmland), as shown on the maps prepared 
pursuant to the Farmland Mapping and 
Monitoring Program of the California 
Resources Agency, to non-agricultural use? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

b) Conflict with existing zoning for 
agricultural use, or a Williamson Act 
contract? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

c) Conflict with existing zoning for, or cause 
rezoning of, forest land (as defined in 
Public Resources Code section 12220(g)), 
timberland (as defined by Public Resources 
Code section 4526), or timberland zoned 
Timberland Production (as defined by 
Government Code section 51104(g))? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

d) Result in the loss of forest land or 
conversion of forest land to non-forest use? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

e) Involve other changes in the existing 
environment which, due to their location or 
nature, could result in conversion of 
Farmland, to non-agricultural use or 
conversion of forest land to non-forest use? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

III.  AIR QUALITY.  Where available, the significance criteria established by the applicable air quality management 
district or air pollution control district may be relied upon to make the following determinations.  Would the project: 

a) Conflict with or obstruct implementation of 
the applicable air quality plan? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

b) Result in a cumulatively considerable net 
increase of any criteria pollutant for which 
the project region is non-attainment under 
an applicable federal or state ambient air 
quality standard? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

c) Expose sensitive receptors to substantial 
pollutant concentrations? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

d) Result in other emissions (such as those 
leading to odors) adversely affecting a 
substantial number of people? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

IV.  BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES.  Would the project: 

51



Supplemental Environmental Checklist Form 6 FORM “J-1” 
 

 

New 
Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

New 
Mitigation 
is Required 

No New 
Impact/No 
Impact 

Reduced 
Impact 

a) Have a substantial adverse effect, either 
directly or through habitat modifications, on 
any species identified as a candidate, 
sensitive, or special status species in local 
or regional plans, policies, or regulations, or 
by the California Department of Fish and 
Game or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

b) Have a substantial adverse effect on any 
riparian habitat or other sensitive natural 
community identified in local or regional 
plans, policies, regulations or by the 
California Department of Fish and Game or 
U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

c) Have a substantial adverse effect on state or 
federally protected wetlands (including, but 
not limited to, marsh, vernal pool, coastal, 
etc.) through direct removal, filling, 
hydrological interruption, or other means? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

d) Interfere substantially with the movement of 
any native resident or migratory fish or 
wildlife species or with established native 
resident or migratory wildlife corridors, or 
impede the use of native wildlife nursery 
sites? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

e) Conflict with any local policies or 
ordinances protecting biological resources, 
such as a tree preservation policy or 
ordinance? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

f) Conflict with the provisions of an adopted 
Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural 
Community Conservation Plan, or other 
approved local, regional, or state habitat 
conservation plan? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

V.  CULTURAL RESOURCES.  Would the project: 

a) Cause a substantial adverse change in the 
significance of a historical resource 
pursuant to § 15064.5? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

b) Cause a substantial adverse change in the 
significance of an archaeological resource 
pursuant to § 15064.5? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

c) Disturb any human remains, including those 
interred outside of dedicated cemeteries? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

52



Supplemental Environmental Checklist Form 7 FORM “J-1” 
 

 

New 
Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

New 
Mitigation 
is Required 

No New 
Impact/No 
Impact 

Reduced 
Impact 

VI.  ENERGY.  Would the project:     

a) Result in potentially significant 
environmental impact due to wasteful, 
inefficient, or unnecessary consumption of 
energy resources, during project 
construction or operation? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

b) Conflict with or obstruct a state or local 
plan for renewable energy or energy 
efficiency? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

VII.  GEOLOGY AND SOILS.  Would the project:     

a) Directly or indirectly cause potential 
substantial adverse effects, including the 
risk of loss, injury or death involving: 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

i) Rupture of a known earthquake fault, 
as delineated on the most recent 
Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zoning 
Map issued by the State Geologist for 
the area or based on other substantial 
evidence of a known fault?  Refer to 
Division of Mines and Geology Special 
Publication 42. 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

ii) Strong seismic ground shaking? ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

iii) Seismic-related ground failure, 
including liquefaction? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

iv) Landslides? ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

b) Result in substantial soil erosion or the loss 
of topsoil? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

c) Be located on a geologic unit or soil that is 
unstable, or that would become unstable as 
a result of the project, and potentially result 
in on- or off-site landslide, lateral 
spreading, subsidence, liquefaction or 
collapse? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

d) Be located on expansive soil, as defined in 
Table 18-1-B of the Uniform Building 
Code, creating substantial direct or indirect 
risks to life or property? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

e) Have soils incapable of adequately 
supporting the use of septic tanks or 
alternative waste water disposal systems 
where sewers are not available for the 
disposal of waste water? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

53



Supplemental Environmental Checklist Form 8 FORM “J-1” 
 

 

New 
Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

New 
Mitigation 
is Required 

No New 
Impact/No 
Impact 

Reduced 
Impact 

f) Directly or indirectly destroy a unique 
paleontological resource or site or unique 
geologic feature? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

VIII.  GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS.  Would the project: 

a) Generate greenhouse gas emissions, either 
directly or indirectly, that may have a 
significant impact on the environment? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

b) Conflict with an applicable plan, policy or 
regulation adopted for the purpose of 
reducing the emission of greenhouse gases? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

IX.  HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS.  Would the project: 

a) Create a significant hazard to the public or 
the environment through the routine 
transport, use, or disposal of hazardous 
materials? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

b) Create a significant hazard to the public or 
the environment through reasonably 
foreseeable upset and accident conditions 
involving the release of hazardous materials 
into the environment? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

c) Emit hazardous emissions or handle 
hazardous or acutely hazardous materials, 
substances, or waste within one-quarter 
mile of an existing or proposed school? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

d) Be located on a site which is included on a 
list of hazardous materials sites compiled 
pursuant to Government Code section 
65962.5 and, as a result, would it create a 
significant hazard to the public or the 
environment? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

e) For a project located within an airport land 
use plan or, where such a plan has not been 
adopted, within two miles of a public 
airport or public use airport, would the 
project result in a safety hazard or excessive 
noise for people residing or working in the 
project area? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

f) Impair implementation of or physically 
interfere with an adopted emergency 
response plan or emergency evacuation 
plan? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

54



Supplemental Environmental Checklist Form 9 FORM “J-1” 
 

 

New 
Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

New 
Mitigation 
is Required 

No New 
Impact/No 
Impact 

Reduced 
Impact 

g) Expose people or structures, either directly 
or indirectly, to a significant risk of loss, 
injury or death involving wildland fires? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

X.  HYDROLOGY AND WATER QUALITY.  Would the project: 

a) Violate any water quality standards or waste 
discharge requirements or otherwise 
substantially degrade surface or ground 
water quality? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

b) Substantially decrease groundwater supplies 
or interfere substantially with groundwater 
recharge such that the project may impede 
sustainable groundwater management of the 
basin? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

c) Substantially alter the existing drainage 
pattern of the site or area, including through 
the alteration of the course of a stream or 
river or through the addition of impervious 
surfaces, in a manner which would: 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

i) result in substantial erosion or siltation 
on- or off-site; 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

ii) substantially increase the rate or 
amount of surface runoff in a manner 
which would result in flooding on- or 
offsite; 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

iii) create or contribute runoff water which 
would exceed the capacity of existing 
or planned stormwater drainage 
systems or provide substantial 
additional sources of polluted runoff; or 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

iv) impede or redirect flood flows? ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

d) In flood hazard, tsunami, or seiche zones, 
risk release of pollutants due to project 
inundation? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

e) Conflict with or obstruct implementation of 
a water quality control plan or sustainable 
groundwater management plan? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

XI.  LAND USE AND PLANNING.  Would the project: 

a) Physically divide an established 
community? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

55



Supplemental Environmental Checklist Form 10 FORM “J-1” 
 

 

New 
Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

New 
Mitigation 
is Required 

No New 
Impact/No 
Impact 

Reduced 
Impact 

b) Cause a significant environmental impact 
due to a conflict with any land use plan, 
policy, or regulation adopted for the 
purpose of avoiding or mitigating an 
environmental effect? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

XII.  MINERAL RESOURCES.  Would the project: 

a) Result in the loss of availability of a known 
mineral resource that would be of value to 
the region and the residents of the state? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

b) Result in the loss of availability of a locally-
important mineral resource recovery site 
delineated on a local general plan, specific 
plan or other land use plan? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

XIII.  NOISE.  Would the project result in:     

a) Generation of a substantial temporary or 
permanent increase in ambient noise levels 
in the vicinity of the project in excess of 
standards established in the local general 
plan or noise ordinance, or applicable 
standards of other agencies? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

b) Generation of excessive groundborne 
vibration or groundborne noise levels? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

c) For a project located within the vicinity of a 
private airstrip or an airport land use plan 
or, where such a plan has not been adopted, 
within two miles of a public airport or 
public use airport, would the project expose 
people residing or working in the project 
area to excessive noise levels? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

XIV.  POPULATION AND HOUSING.  Would the project: 

a) Induce substantial unplanned population 
growth in an area, either directly (for 
example, by proposing new homes and 
businesses) or indirectly (for example, 
through extension of road or other 
infrastructure)? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

b) Displace substantial numbers of existing 
people or housing, necessitating the 
construction of replacement housing 
elsewhere? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

56



Supplemental Environmental Checklist Form 11 FORM “J-1” 
 

 

New 
Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

New 
Mitigation 
is Required 

No New 
Impact/No 
Impact 

Reduced 
Impact 

XV.  PUBLIC SERVICES.  Would the project:     

a) Result in substantial adverse physical 
impacts associated with the provision of 
new or physically altered governmental 
facilities, need for new or physically 
altered governmental facilities, the 
construction of which could cause 
significant environmental impacts, in order 
to maintain acceptable service ratios, 
response times or other performance 
objectives for any of the public services: 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

Fire protection? ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

Police protection? ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

Schools? ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

Parks? ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

Other public facilities? ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

XVI.  RECREATION.      

a) Would the project increase the use of 
existing neighborhood and regional parks or 
other recreational facilities such that 
substantial physical deterioration of the 
facility would occur or be accelerated? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

b) Does the project include recreational 
facilities or require the construction or 
expansion of recreational facilities which 
have an adverse physical effect on the 
environment? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

XVII.  TRANSPORTATION.  Would the project:     

a) Conflict with program plan, ordinance or 
policy addressing the circulation system, 
including transit, roadway, bicycle and 
pedestrian facilities?  

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

b) Conflict or be inconsistent with CEQA 
Guidelines section 15064.3, subdivision 
(b)? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

c) Substantially increase hazards due to a 
geometric design feature (e.g., sharp curves 
or dangerous intersections) or incompatible 
uses (e.g., farm equipment)? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

d) Result in inadequate emergency access? ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

57



Supplemental Environmental Checklist Form 12 FORM “J-1” 
 

 

New 
Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

New 
Mitigation 
is Required 

No New 
Impact/No 
Impact 

Reduced 
Impact 

XVIII. TRIBAL CULTURAL RESOURCES. Would the project: 

a) Cause a substantial adverse change in the 
significance of a tribal cultural resource, 
defined in Public Resources Code section 
21074 as either a site, feature, place, 
cultural landscape that is geographically 
defined in terms of the size and scope of the 
landscape, sacred place, or object with 
cultural value to a California Native 
American tribe, and that is: 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

i) Listed or eligible for listing in the 
California Register of Historical 
Resources, or in a local register of 
historical resources as defined in Public 
Resources Code section 5020.1(k), or 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

ii) A resource determined by the lead 
agency, in its discretion and supported 
by substantial evidence, to be 
significant pursuant to criteria set forth 
in subdivision (c) of Public Resources 
Code section 5024.1.  In applying the 
criteria set forth in subdivision (c) of 
Public Resources Code section 5024.1, 
the lead agency shall consider the 
significance of the resource to a 
California Native American tribe. 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

XIX.  UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS.  Would the project: 

a) Require or result in the relocation or 
construction of new or expanded water, 
wastewater treatment or storm water 
drainage, electric power, natural gas, or 
telecommunications facilities, the 
construction or relocation of which could 
cause significant environmental effects? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

b) Have sufficient water supplies available to 
serve the project and reasonably foreseeable 
future development during normal, dry and 
multiple dry years?   

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

c) Result in a determination by the wastewater 
treatment provider which serves or may 
serve the project that it has adequate 
capacity to serve the project's projected 
demand in addition to the provider's 
existing commitments? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

58



Supplemental Environmental Checklist Form 13 FORM “J-1” 
 

 

New 
Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

New 
Mitigation 
is Required 

No New 
Impact/No 
Impact 

Reduced 
Impact 

d) Generate solid waste in excess of State or 
local standards, or in excess of the capacity 
of local infrastructure, or otherwise impair 
the attainment of solid waste reduction 
goals? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

e) Comply with federal, state, and local 
management and reduction statutes and 
regulations related to solid waste? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

X.  WILDFIRE.  If located in or near state responsibility areas or lands classified as very high fire hazard severity zones, 
would the project: 

a) Substantially impair an adopted emergency 
response plan or emergency evacuation 
plan? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

b) Due to slope, prevailing winds, and other 
factors, exacerbate wildfire risks, and 
thereby expose project occupants to, 
pollutant concentrations from a wildfire or 
the uncontrolled spread of a wildfire? 

☒ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

c) Require the installation or maintenance of 
associated infrastructure (such as roads, fuel 
breaks, emergency water sources, power 
lines or other utilities) that may exacerbate 
fire risk or that may result in temporary or 
ongoing impacts to the environment? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

d) Expose people or structures to significant 
risks, including downslope or downstream 
flooding or landslides, as a result of runoff, 
post-fire slope instability, or drainage 
changes? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

XI.  MANDATORY FINDINGS OF SIGNIFICANCE.  (State CEQA Guidelines section 15065(a).) 
a) Does the project have the potential to 

substantially degrade the quality of the 
environment, substantially reduce the 
habitat of a fish or wildlife species, cause a 
fish or wildlife population to drop below 
self-sustaining levels, threaten to eliminate 
a plant or animal community, substantially 
reduce the number or restrict the range of a 
rare or endangered plant or animal or 
eliminate important examples of the major 
periods of California history or prehistory? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

b) Does the project have the potential to 
achieve short-term environmental goals to 
the disadvantage of long-term 
environmental goals? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

59



Supplemental Environmental Checklist Form 14 FORM “J-1” 
 

 

New 
Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

New 
Mitigation 
is Required 

No New 
Impact/No 
Impact 

Reduced 
Impact 

c) Does the project have impacts that are 
individually limited, but cumulatively 
considerable?  (“Cumulatively 
considerable” means that the incremental 
effects of a project are considerable when 
viewed in connection with the effects of 
past projects, the effects of other current 
project, and the effects of probable future 
projects.) 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

d) Does the project have environmental effects 
which will cause substantial adverse effects 
on human beings, either directly or 
indirectly? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

 

60



Notice of Availability of Draft EIR 
 

 FORM “K” 

 

NOTICE OF AVAILABILITY OF DRAFT EIR 

To:  

From:  

Lead Agencies:  

Contacts (name, address, 
telephone, email address): 

 

Project Title:  

Project Location – Specific; 
Identify street address and 
cross streets or attach a map 
showing project site 
(preferably a USGS 15’ or 7 
1/2’ topographical map 
identified by quadrangle 
name): 

 

Project Location – City:  

Project Location – County:  

Description of Nature, Purpose, and Beneficiaries of Project: 
 

Significant environmental 
effects:  
 

 

Place and time of scheduled 
meetings: 

 

Date when project noticed to 
public: 

 

Address where copy of the EIR is available and how it can be obtained in an electronic format: 
 

Review Period:  to  

Comments on the Draft EIR may be submitted via e-mail to xxxxxxx, or via U.S. mail to xxxxx, at 
the above mailing address by ____ __.m. on ____________, 2023.  In addition, comments may be 
provided at the public hearing noticed above. 

 

61



REQUEST FOR FEE EXEMPTION\-South Coast 
Region (Region 5) 

1 FORM “L” 

 

California Department of Fish and Wildlife – South Coast Region 5 

No Effect Determination Request Form 

To: DEPARTMENT OF FISH AND WILDLIFE 

South Coast Regional Office 
3883 Ruffin Road 
San Diego, CA 92123 
Information: (858) 467-4201 
FAX: (858) 467-4299 
Email:  AskR5@wildlife.ca.gov 

http://www.wildlife.ca.gov 
Environmental Review and Permitting 
1416 Ninth Street 
Sacramento, California 95814 
Information:  (916) 653-4875 

Date Submitted:  

CEQA Lead Agency:  

Lead Agency Contact Phone Number:  

Lead Agency Address:  

SCH Number or County Filing Number 
and local agency project/case number: 

 

CEQA Document Type (the type of 
document prepared for your project by the 
CEQA Lead Agency): 

 

Applicant Name and Contact Phone 
Number (if applicable): 

 
 

Applicant Address (if applicable):  

Project Title:  

Project Location (include the street 
address, lat/long, range/township/section, 
or other description that clearly indicates 
the location of the project site.  Include an 
aerial or topographic map of the project 
site): 

 

Project Description (include details such 
as new construction [with square footage], 
demolition of existing buildings, adaptive 
reuse of existing buildings, zoning 
amendments, general plan amendments, 
conditional use for sale of alcoholic 
beverages, etc.)  Use additional sheets if 
necessary: 

 

Justification for No Effect Determination 
(explain how  the proposed project is 
consistent with Title 14 Section 753.5(d) 
CCR): 

 

62



REQUEST FOR FEE EXEMPTION\-South Coast 
Region (Region 5) 

2 FORM “L” 

 

Facts Supporting Fee Exemption: 

1. An Initial Study has been prepared by the Lead Agency to evaluate the project's effects on fish and wildlife 
resources, if any. 

2. The Lead Agency hereby finds that there is substantial evidence that the project will have no effect on fish or 
wildlife. 

3. The project will have NO EFFECT on the following resources: 

 (A) Riparian land, rivers, streams, watercourses and wetlands; 

 (B) Native and non-native plant life and the soil required to sustain habitat for fish and wildlife; 

 (C) Rare and unique plant life and ecological communities dependent on plant life; 

 (D) Listed threatened and endangered plants and animals and the habitat in which they are believed to reside; 

 (E) All species listed as protected or identified for special management in the Fish and Game Code, the Public 
Resources Code, the Water Code or regulations adopted thereunder; 

 (F) All marine and terrestrial species subject to the jurisdiction of the Department of Fish and Game and the 
ecological communities in which they reside; and 

 (G) All air and water resources, the degradation of which will individually or cumulatively result in a loss of 
biological diversity among the plants and animals residing in that air and water. 

DECLARATION: 

Based on the Lead Agency’s evaluation of potential adverse effects on fish and wildlife resources, the Lead 
Agency believes the project will have no effect on fish or wildlife resources, as defined in Section 711.2 of the Fish and 
Game Code. 

______________________________________ 
Signature - Lead Agency Representative 

Title:  

Lead Agency:  

Date:  

 

63



Notice of Recirculation  FORM “M” 
 

NOTICE OF RECIRCULATION  

To whom it may concern: 

You are receiving this notice because you commented on the Draft EIR for the following Project: 

Project Name: 

 

 

Project Description: 

 

 

Project Location – Identify street address and 
cross streets or attach a map showing project 
site (preferably a USGS 15’ or 7 1/2’ 
topographical map identified by quadrangle 
name): 

 

The Draft EIR prepared for this project has been revised. 

☐ The entire Draft EIR is being recirculated.  Your prior comments remain part of the administrative record, but 
they are no longer applicable to the Draft EIR that is under consideration.  The Final EIR will not provide a 
response to your prior comments.  Should you wish to comment on the revised Draft EIR, you will need to 
submit new comments. 

☐ Only the following chapters or portions of the 
Draft EIR have been revised, and only those 
parts of the revised Draft EIR are being 
recirculated: 

 

☐ Your comments should be limited to those parts of the revised Draft EIR that are being recirculated. 

☐ Your comments need not be limited to those parts of the revised Draft EIR that are being recirculated. 

Review Period on Recirculated Draft EIR:  From  to  

All comments on the Recirculated Draft EIR should be addressed to the following individual and must be 
received no later than [FILL-IN END DATE].  Should you have any questions about this notice, please contact: 

Staff:    

Title:  

Telephone Number:  

E-Mail:  

Date Received for Filing: 
 

Staff  

(Clerk Stamp Here)  

 

64



 

REQUEST FOR WATER SUPPLY ASSESSMENT FORM “N” 
 

THIS IS A SAMPLE FORM AND SHOULD BE MODIFIED TO MEET THE NEEDS OF 
THE PARTICULAR PROJECT/CIRCUMSTANCE 

 

General Manager 
 
 
 

Re: Water Supply Assessment for  Project within the ________________ 

Dear ______________, 

We have received an application from [project proponent] for the following project 
(“Project”): 

 

We have consulted with each other and have mutually agreed that your 
[District/Agency/Company] is a public water system that may provide water service to 
the Project.  We have also mutually agreed that the Project is subject to the water supply 
assessment requirements of Water Code sections 10910 - 10912.  Pursuant to Water Code 
section 10910,  [Agency name] requests  to submit a water supply assessment for the 
Project on or before _________, which is within 90 days of the date of this request.  We 
concurrently request the [District/Agency/Company] to state whether the projected water 
demand associated with the Project was included as part of the most recently adopted 
Urban Water Management Plan.  Please contact me to confirm receipt of this request. 

Thank you for your cooperation in this matter.  If you have any questions about this 
request, please contact me at your earliest convenience. 

 
 

65



WATER SUPPLY VERIFICATION REQUEST  FORM “O” 
 

THIS IS A SAMPLE FORM AND SHOULD BE MODIFIED AS NECESSARY TO MEET THE 
NEEDS OF THE PARTICULAR PROJECT/CIRCUMSTANCE 

 

General Manager 
 
 
 

Re: Water Supply Verification for  Project within the  of ________________ 

Dear __________________________, 

________________ has submitted to the [public agency] an application for tentative map (No. ) 
for the following subdivision (“Subdivision”): 

  

______________ staff has determined that the application is complete.  Pursuant to Government 
Code section 66455.3, we are enclosing a copy of the application.] 

[We have consulted with each other and have mutually agreed that your  is a public water system 
that may provide water service to the Subdivision.  We have also mutually agreed that the 
Subdivision is subject to the water supply verification requirements of the Subdivision Map Act.]  
Pursuant to Government Code section 66473.7(b)(1), requests your ____________ to submit a 
water supply verification for the Subdivision on or before , which is within 90 days of the date of 
this request.  Please contact me to confirm receipt of this request. 

Thank you for your cooperation in this matter.  If you have any questions about this request, 
please contact me at your earliest convenience. 

 
 

66



Request for Shortened Review 1 FORM “P” 
 

SHORTENED REVIEW REQUEST FORM 

(To be filled out and signed by the Lead Agency and submitted with the DEIR or Negative Declaration to SCH) 

TO: State Clearinghouse 
P.O. Box 3044 
Sacramento, CA 95812-3044 

 

FROM: Lead Agency:   

Address:  

Phone No.:  

Contact:  

 

State Clearinghouse Number:   

Project Title:   

Specific Project Location – Identify street address and cross street or attach a map showing project site (preferably a 
USGS 15’ or 7 ½’ topographical map identified by quadrangle name): 

 

General Project Location (City and/or County):   

Type of Environmental Document: 

☐ Environmental Impact Report (EIR).  The Lead Agency issued a Notice of Preparation on ________  and 
received comments from applicable State agencies.   

☐ Negative Declaration (ND) or Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND).  The Lead Agency consulted with 
applicable State agencies on .   

Brief Project Description: 

 

Explain “exceptional circumstances” (State CEQA Guidelines Section 15205(d)) for requesting a shortened review. 
Identify which of the following five (5) criteria in State CEQA Guidelines Appendix K are met for this project. 

1. ☐ The Lead Agency is operating under an extension of the one-year period for completion of an EIR and would 
not otherwise be able to complete the EIR within the extended period. 

2. ☐ The public project applicant is under severe time constraints with regard to obtaining financing or exercising 
options which cannot be met without shortening the review period. 

3. ☐ The document is a supplement to a draft EIR or proposed negative declaration or mitigated negative 
declaration previously submitted to the State Clearinghouse. 

4. ☐ The health and safety of the community would be at risk unless the project is approved expeditiously. 

5. ☐ The document is a revised draft EIR, or proposed negative declaration or mitigated negative declaration, 
where changes in the document are primarily the result of comments from agencies and the public. 

67



Request for Shortened Review 2 FORM “P” 
 

  Explain how the above criteria applies to the project.  

 

In compliance with the State and Local CEQA Guidelines, the Lead Agency has contacted and obtained prior approval for 
a shortened review from the applicable State responsible and trustee agencies. List responsible and trustee state agencies 
with contact person, phone number and date of consent for the shortened review, as well as any agencies that have 
commented on the project (attach additional pages, if necessary): 

 

As designated representative for the Lead Agency, I verify, in the Lead Agency’s behalf, that there is no “statewide, 
regional, or areawide significance” to this project. 

Length of review being requested:  days 

Date:   ____________________________________________ 
Signature of Designated Lead Agency Representative 

Print Name:  
 

Title:  

 

Date Received for Filing:    
 

68



Electronic Submittal 1 FORM “Q” 
 

SUMMARY FORM FOR ELECTRONIC DOCUMENT SUBMITTAL 

Lead agencies must submit Environmental Impact Reports, Negative Declarations, Mitigated Negative Declarations, or 
Notices of Preparation to the State Clearinghouse (SCH) through the CEQA Submit portal.  The SCH also accepts other 
summaries, such as EIR Executive Summaries prepared pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15123 electronically only.  
Please include the Notice of Completion Form (NOC) with your submission and attach the summary to each electronic 
copy of the document. 

State Clearinghouse Number:   

 

Project Title:   

 

Lead Agency:   

 

Contact Name:   

Email:  Phone Number:  

Project Location (City and County):  

 
Provide a Project Description (Proposed actions, location, and/or consequences). 

 

Identify the project's significant or potentially significant effects and briefly describe any proposed mitigation 
measures that would reduce or avoid that effect. 

 

If applicable, describe any of the project’s areas of controversy known to the Lead Agency, including issues raised by 
agencies and the public. 

 

Provide a list of the responsible or trustee agencies for the project. 

 

 

69



 

1 
PERFORMANCE STANDARDS FOR INFILL PROJECT FORM R 

 

Form R: Performance Standards for Infill Projects Eligible for Streamlined 
Review 

I. Introduction 

Section 15183.3 provides a streamlined review process for infill projects that satisfy specified 
performance standards. This appendix contains those performance standards. The lead agency's 
determination that the project satisfies the performance standards shall be supported with substantial 
evidence, which should be documented on the Infill Checklist in Appendix S. Section II defines terms 
used in this Appendix. Performance standards that apply to all project types are set forth in Section III. 
Section IV contains performance standards that apply to particular project types (i.e., residential, 
commercial/retail, office building, transit stations, and schools). 

II. Definitions 

The following definitions apply to the terms used in this Appendix. 

“High-quality transit corridor” means an existing corridor with fixed route bus service with service 
intervals no longer than 15 minutes during peak commute hours. For the purposes of this Appendix, an 
“existing stop along a high-quality transit corridor” may include a planned and funded stop that is 
included in an adopted regional transportation improvement program. 

Unless more specifically defined by an air district, city or county, “high-volume roadway” means 
freeways, highways, urban roads with 100,000 vehicles per day, or rural roads with 50,000 vehicles per 
day. 

“Low vehicle travel area” means a traffic analysis zone that exhibits a below average existing level of 
travel as determined using a regional travel demand model. For residential projects, travel refers to 
either home-based or household vehicle miles traveled per capita. For commercial and retail projects, 
travel refers to non-work attraction trip length; however, where such data are not available, commercial 
projects reference either home-based or household vehicle miles traveled per capita. For office projects, 
travel refers to commute attraction vehicle miles traveled per employee; however, where such data are 
not available, office projects reference either home-based or household vehicle miles traveled per capita. 

“Major Transit Stop” means a site containing an existing rail transit station, a ferry terminal served by 
either a bus or rail transit service, or the intersection of two or more major bus routes with frequencies of 
service intervals of 15 minutes or less during the morning and afternoon peak commute periods. For the 
purposes of this Appendix, an “existing major transit stop” may include a planned and funded stop that 
is included in an adopted regional transportation improvement program. 

“Office building” generally refers to centers for governmental or professional services; however, the 
lead agency shall have discretion in determining whether a project is “commercial” or “office building” 
for the purposes of this Appendix based on local zoning codes. 

“Significant sources of air pollution” include airports, marine ports, rail yards and distribution centers 
that receive more than 100 heavy-duty truck visits per day, as well as stationary sources that are 
designated major by the Clean Air Act. 

70



 

2 
PERFORMANCE STANDARDS FOR INFILL PROJECT FORM R 

 

A “Traffic Analysis Zone” is an analytical unit used by a travel demand model to estimate vehicle travel 
within a region. 

III. Performance Standards Related to Project Design 

To be eligible for streamlining pursuant to Section 15183.3, a project must implement all of the 
following: 

Renewable Energy. All non-residential projects shall include on-site renewable power generation, such 
as solar photovoltaic, solar thermal and wind power generation, or clean back-up power supplies, where 
feasible. Residential projects are also encouraged to include such on-site renewable power generation. 

Soil and Water Remediation. If the project site is included on any list compiled pursuant to Section 
65962.5 of the Government Code, the project shall document how it has remediated the site, if 
remediation is completed. Alternatively, the project shall implement the recommendations provided in a 
preliminary endangerment assessment or comparable document that identifies remediation appropriate 
for the site. 

Residential Units Near High-Volume Roadways and Stationary Sources. If a project includes 
residential units located within 500 feet, or other distance determined to be appropriate by the local 
agency or air district based on local conditions, of a high volume roadway or other significant sources of 
air pollution, the project shall comply with any policies and standards identified in the local general 
plan, specific plan, zoning code or community risk reduction plan for the protection of public health 
from such sources of air pollution. If the local government has not adopted such plans or policies, the 
project shall include measures, such as enhanced air filtration and project design, that the lead agency 
finds, based on substantial evidence, will promote the protection of public health from sources of air 
pollution. Those measures may include, among others, the recommendations of the California Air 
Resources Board, air districts, and the California Air Pollution Control Officers Association. 

IV. Additional Performance Standards by Project Type 

In addition to the project features described above in Section III, specific eligibility requirements are 
provided below by project type. 

Several of the performance standards below refer to “low vehicle travel areas.”  Such areas can be 
illustrated on maps based on data developed by the regional Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) 
using its regional travel demand model. 

Several of the performance standards below refer to distance to transit. Distance should be calculated so 
that at least 75 percent of the surface area of the project site is within the specified distance. 

A. Residential 

To be eligible for streamlining pursuant to Section 15183.3, a project must satisfy one of the 
following: 

71



 

3 
PERFORMANCE STANDARDS FOR INFILL PROJECT FORM R 

 

Projects achieving below average regional per capita vehicle miles traveled (VMT).  A 
residential project is eligible if it is located in a “low vehicle travel area” within the region. 

Projects located within 1/2% mile of an Existing Major Transit Stop or High Quality Transit 
Corridor. A residential project is eligible if it is located within 1/2 mile of an existing major transit 
stop or an existing stop along a high quality transit corridor. 

Low-Income Housing. A residential or mixed-use project consisting of 300 or fewer residential 
units all of which are affordable to low income households is eligible if the developer of the 
development project provides sufficient legal commitments to the lead agency to ensure the 
continued availability and use of the housing units for lower income households, as defined in 
Section 50079.5 of the Health and Safety Code, for a period of at least 30 years, at monthly housing 
costs, as determined pursuant to Section 50053 of the Health and Safety Code. 

B. Commercial/Retail 

To be eligible for streamlining pursuant to Section 15183.3, a project must satisfy one of 
the following: 

Regional Location. A commercial project with no single-building floor-plate greater 
than 50,000 square feet is eligible if it locates in a “low vehicle travel area.” 

Proximity to Households. A project with no single-building floor-plate greater than 
50,000 square feet located within one-half mile of 1800 households is eligible. 

C. Office Building 

To be eligible for streamlining pursuant to Section 15183.3, a project must satisfy one of the 
following: 

Regional Location. Office buildings, both commercial and public, are eligible if they locate in a 
low vehicle travel area. 

Proximity to a Major Transit Stop. Office buildings, both commercial and public, within 1/2 
mile of an existing major transit stop, or 1/4 mile of an existing stop along a high quality transit 
corridor, are eligible. 

D. Transit 

Transit stations, as defined in Section 15183.3(e)(1), are eligible. 

E. Schools 

Elementary schools within one mile of fifty percent of the projected student population are eligible. 
Middle schools and high schools within two miles of fifty percent of the projected student 
population are eligible. Alternatively, any school within 1/2% mile of an existing major transit 
stop or an existing stop along a high quality transit corridor is eligible. 

72



 

4 
PERFORMANCE STANDARDS FOR INFILL PROJECT FORM R 

 

Additionally, in order to be eligible, all schools shall provide parking and storage for bicycles and 
scooters and shall comply with the requirements in Sections 17213, 17213.1 and 17213.2 of the 
California Education Code. 

F. Small Walkable Community Projects 

Small walkable community projects, as defined in Section 15183.3, subdivision (e)(6), that 
implement the project features described in Section III above are eligible. 

G. Mixed-Use Projects 

Where a project includes some combination of residential, commercial and retail, office building, 
transit station, and/or schools, the performance standards in this Section that apply to the 
predominant use shall govern the entire project. 

Authority:  Public Resources Code Sections 21083, 21094.5.5 

Reference: Public Resources Code Sections 21094.5 and 21094.5.5 

73



Infill Environmental Checklist Form Page 1 of 23 FORM “S” 
 

INFILL ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST FORM 

NOTE: This sample form is intended to assist lead agencies in assessing infill projects according to the procedures 
provided in Section 21094.5 of the Public Resources Code.  Lead agencies may customize this form as appropriate, provided 
that the contents satisfies the requirements in Section 15183.3 of the State CEQA Guidelines. 

1. Project Title:    

2. Lead Agency Name and Address:   
 
  

3. Contact Person and Phone Number:   

4. Project Location:  Click to enter text. 

5. Project Sponsor's Name and Address: 
 
 
 

6. General Plan Designation:   7. Zoning:   

8. Prior Environmental Document(s) Analyzing the Effects of the Infill Project: 
 
 

9. Location of Prior Environmental Document(s) Analyzing the Effects of the Infill Project (including State 
Clearinghouse Number, if assigned):  
 

10. Description of Project:  (Describe the whole action involved, including but not limited to later phases of the project, 
and any secondary, support, or off-site features necessary for its implementation.  Attach additional sheet(s) if 
necessary.) 
 
 

11. Surrounding Land Uses and Setting:  (Briefly describe the project's surroundings, including any prior uses of the 
project site, or, if vacant, describe the urban uses that exist on at least 75% of the project’s perimeter.) 
 
 

12. Other public agencies whose approval is required (e.g., permits, financing approval, or participation agreement): 
 
 

13. Have California Native American tribes traditionally and culturally affiliated with the project area requested 
consultation pursuant to Public Resources Code section 21080.3.1?  If so, is there a plan for consultation that 
includes, for example, the determination of significance of impacts to tribal cultural resources, procedures regarding 
confidentiality, etc.? 

 
___________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Note:  Conducting consultation early in the CEQA process allows tribal governments, lead agencies, and project proponents 
to discuss the level of environmental review, identify and address potential adverse impacts to tribal cultural resources, and 
reduce the potential for delay and conflict in the environmental review process.  (See Public Resources Code section 
21080.3.2.)  Information may also be available from the California Native American Heritage Commission’s Sacred Lands 
File per Public Resources Code section 5097.96 and the California Historical Resources Information System administered 
by the California Office of Historic Preservation.  Please also note that Public Resources Code section 21082.3(c) contains 
provisions specific to confidentiality 

74



Infill Environmental Checklist Form Page 2 of 23 FORM “S” 
 

SATISFACTION OF FORM R PERFORMANCE STANDARDS 

Provide the information demonstrating that the infill project satisfies the performance standards in Form R below.  For 
mixed-use projects, the predominant use will determine which performance standards apply to the entire project. 

1. Does the non-residential infill project include a renewable energy feature?  If so, describe below.  If not, explain 
below why it is not feasible to do so.  
 
 

2. If the project site is included on any list compiled pursuant to Section 65962.5 of the Government Code, either 
provide documentation of remediation or describe the recommendations provided in a preliminary endangerment 
assessment or comparable document that will be implemented as part of the project.  
 
 

3. If the infill project includes residential units located within 500 feet, or such distance that the local agency or local 
air district has determined is appropriate based on local conditions, a high volume roadway or other significant 
source of air pollution, as defined in Form R, describe the measures that the project will implement to protect 
public health. Such measures may include policies and standards identified in the local general plan, specific 
plans, zoning code or community risk reduction plan, or measures recommended in a health risk assessment, to 
promote the protection of public health. Identify the policies or standards, or refer to the site specific analysis, 
below.  (Attach additional sheets if necessary.) 
 
 

4. For residential projects, the project satisfies which of the following? 

☐ Located within a low vehicle travel area, as defined in Form S.  (Attach VMT map.) 

☐ Located within 1/2 mile of an existing major transit stop or an existing stop along a high quality transit corridor. 
(Attach map illustrating proximity to transit.) 

☐ Consists of 300 or fewer units that are each affordable to low income households.  (Attach evidence of legal 
commitment to ensure the continued availability and use of the housing units for lower income households, as defined 
in Section 50079.5 of the Health and Safety Code, for a period of at least 30 years, at monthly housing costs, as 
determined pursuant to Section 50053 of the Health and Safety Code.) 

5. For commercial projects with a single building floor-plate below 50,000 square feet, the project satisfies which of 
the following? 

☐ Located within a low vehicle travel area, as defined in Form R.  (Attach VMT map.) 

☐ The project is within one-half mile of 1800 dwelling units.  (Attach map illustrating proximity to households.) 

6. For office building projects, the project satisfies which of the following? 

☐ Located within a low vehicle travel area, as defined in Form R. (Attach VMT map.) 

☐ Located within 1/2 mile of an existing major transit stop or within 1/4 of a stop along a high quality transit corridor. 
(Attach map illustrating proximity to transit.) 

75



Infill Environmental Checklist Form Page 3 of 23 FORM “S” 
 

7. For school projects, the project does all of the following: 

☐ The project complies with the requirements of Sections 17213, 17213.1 and 17213.2 of the California Education 
Code. 

☐ The project is an elementary school and is within one mile of 50% of the student population, or is a middle school or 
high school and is within two miles of 50% of the student population.  Alternatively, the school is within 1/2 mile of an 
existing major transit stop or an existing stop along a high quality transit corridor.  (Attach map and methodology.) 

☐ The project provides parking and storage for bicycles and scooters. 

8. For small walkable community projects, the project must be a residential project that has a density of at least 
eight units to the acre or a commercial project with a floor area ratio of at least 0.5, or both. 

ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS POTENTIALLY AFFECTED:   

The infill project could potentially result in one or more of the following environmental effects. 

☐ Aesthetics ☐ Agriculture and Forestry Resources ☐ Air Quality 

☐ Biological Resources ☐ Cultural Resources ☐ Geology / Soils 

☐ Greenhouse Gas Emissions ☐ Hazards & Hazardous Materials ☐ Hydrology / Water Quality 

☐ Land Use / Planning ☐ Mineral Resources ☐ Noise 

☐ Population / Housing ☐ Public Services ☐ Recreation 

☐ Transportation  ☐ Utilities / Service Systems ☐ Mandatory Findings of Significance 

☐ Energy ☐ Wildfire   

DETERMINATION (To be completed by the Lead Agency): 

On the basis of this initial evaluation: 

☐ I find that the proposed infill project WOULD NOT have any significant effect on the environment that either 
have not already been analyzed in a prior EIR or that are more significant than previously analyzed, or that 
uniformly applicable development policies would not substantially mitigate.  Pursuant to Public Resources Code 
Section 21094.5, CEQA does not apply to such effects.  A Notice of Determination  will be filed.  (State CEQA 
Guidelines, § 15094.) 

☐ I find that the proposed infill project will have effects that either have not been analyzed in a prior EIR, or are 
more significant than described in the prior EIR, and that no uniformly applicable development policies would 
substantially mitigate such effects.  With respect to those effects that are subject to CEQA, I find that such effects 
WOULD NOT be significant and a NEGATIVE DECLARATION, or if the project is a Transit Priority Project a 
SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT, will be prepared. 

☐ I find that the proposed infill project will have effects that either have not been analyzed in a prior EIR, or are 
more significant than described in the prior EIR, and that no uniformly applicable development policies would 
substantially mitigate such effects.  I find that although those effects could be significant, there will not be a 
significant effect in this case because revisions in the infill project have been made by or agreed to by the project 
proponent.  A MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION, or if the project is a Transit Priority Project a 
SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT, will be prepared. 

76



Infill Environmental Checklist Form Page 4 of 23 FORM “S” 
 

☐  I find that the proposed infill project would have effects that either have not been analyzed in a prior EIR, or are 
more significant than described in the prior EIR, and that no uniformly applicable development policies would 
substantially mitigate such effects.  I find that those effects WOULD be significant, and an infill 
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is required to analyze those effects that are subject to CEQA. 

 
  
Signature 

 
Date 

. 
Printed Name 

. 
For 

EVALUATION OF ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS: 
 
1. A brief explanation is required for all answers except “No Impact” answers that are adequately supported by the 

information sources a Lead Agency cites in the parentheses following each question.  A “No Impact” answer is 
adequately supported if the referenced information sources show that the impact simply does not apply to projects 
like the one involved (e.g. the project falls outside a fault rupture zone).  A “No Impact” answer should be explained 
where it is based on project-specific factors as well as general standards (e.g. the project will not expose sensitive 
receptors to pollutants, based on a project-specific screening analysis). 

2. All answers must take account of the whole action involved, including off-site as well as on-site, cumulative as well 
as project-level, indirect as well as direct, and construction as well as operational impacts. 

3. For the purposes of this checklist, “prior EIR” means the environmental impact report certified for a planning level 
decision, as supplemented by any subsequent or supplemental environmental impact reports, negative declarations, or 
addenda to those documents.  “Planning level decision” means the enactment or amendment of a general plan, 
community plan, specific plan, or zoning code. (State CEQA Guidelines, § 15183.3(f)(2).) 

4. Once the Lead Agency has determined that a particular physical impact may occur as a result of an infill project, then 
the checklist answers must indicate whether the impact has already been analyzed in a prior EIR.  If the effect of the 
infill project is not more significant than what has already been analyzed, that effect of the infill project is not subject 
to CEQA.  The brief explanation accompanying this determination should include page and section references to the 
portions of the prior EIR containing this analysis of that effect.  The brief explanation shall also indicate whether the 
prior EIR included any mitigation measures to substantially lessen that effect and whether those measures have been 
incorporated into the infill project. 

5. If the infill project would cause a significant adverse effect that either is specific to the project or project site and was 
not analyzed in a prior EIR, or is more significant than what was analyzed in a prior EIR, the Lead Agency must 
determine whether uniformly applicable development policies or standards that have been adopted by the Lead 
Agency, or city or county, would substantially mitigate that effect. If so, the checklist shall explain how the infill 
project’s implementation of the uniformly applicable development policies will substantially mitigate that effect. 
That effect of the infill project is not subject to CEQA if the lead agency makes a finding, based upon substantial 
evidence, that the development policies or standards will substantially mitigate that effect. 

6. If all effects of an infill project were either analyzed in a prior EIR or are substantially mitigated by uniformly 
applicable development policies or standards, CEQA does not apply to the project, and the Lead Agency shall file a 
Notice of Determination. 

7. Effects of an infill project that either have not been analyzed in a prior EIR, or that uniformly applicable development 
policies or standards do not substantially mitigate, are subject to CEQA. With respect to those effects of the infill 
project that are subject to CEQA, the checklist shall indicate whether those effects are significant, less than 
significant with mitigation, or less than significant. If there are one or more “Significant Impact” entries when the 
determination is made, an infill EIR is required. The infill EIR should be limited to analysis of those effects 
determined to be significant. (State CEQA Guidelines, § 15183.3(d).) 

8. “Less Than Significant With Mitigation Incorporated” applies where the incorporation of mitigation measures will 
reduce an effect of an infill project that is subject to CEQA from “Significant Impact” to a “Less Than Significant 

77



Infill Environmental Checklist Form Page 5 of 23 FORM “S” 
 

Impact.”  The Lead Agency must describe the mitigation measures, and briefly explain how those measures reduce 
the effect to a less than significant level. If the effects of an infill project that are subject to CEQA are less than 
significant with mitigation incorporated, the Lead Agency may prepare a Mitigated Negative Declaration. If all of the 
effects of the infill project that are subject to CEQA are less than significant, the lead agency may prepare a Negative 
Declaration. 

9. This is only a suggested form, and lead agencies are free to use different formats; however, lead agencies should 
normally address the questions from this checklist that are relevant to an infill project's environmental effects in 
whatever format is selected. 

10. The explanation of each issue should identify: 

a. the significance criteria or threshold, if any, used to evaluate each question; and 

b. the mitigation measure identified, if any, to reduce the impact to less than significance. 

Issues: 

 
Significant 
Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 
With 
Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

No 
Impact 

Analyzed 
in the 
Prior 
EIR 

Substantially 
Mitigated by 
Uniformly 
Applicable 
Development 
Policies 

I. AESTHETICS.  Except as 
provided in Public Resources 
Code section 21099, would 
the project: 

      

a) Have a substantial 
adverse effect on a 
scenic vista? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

b) Substantially damage 
scenic resources, 
including, but not limited 
to, trees, rock 
outcroppings, and 
historic buildings within 
a state scenic highway? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

c) In non-urbanized areas, 
substantially degrade the 
existing visual character 
or quality of public 
views of the site and its 
surroundings?  (Public 
views are those that are 
experienced from 
publicly accessible 
vantage point). If the 
project is in an urbanized 
area, would the project 
conflict with applicable 
zoning and other 
regulations governing 
scenic quality?) 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

78



Infill Environmental Checklist Form Page 6 of 23 FORM “S” 
 

 
Significant 
Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 
With 
Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

No 
Impact 

Analyzed 
in the 
Prior 
EIR 

Substantially 
Mitigated by 
Uniformly 
Applicable 
Development 
Policies 

d) Create a new source of 
substantial light or glare 
which would adversely 
affect day or nighttime 
views in the area? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

II. AGRICULTURE AND 
FOREST RESOURCES.  In 
determining whether impacts 
to agricultural resources are 
significant environmental 
effects, lead agencies may 
refer to the California 
Agricultural Land Evaluation 
and Site Assessment Model 
(1997) prepared by the 
California Dept. of 
Conservation as an optional 
model to use in assessing 
impacts on agriculture and 
farmland.  In determining 
whether impacts to forest 
resources, including 
timberland, are significant 
environmental effects, lead 
agencies may refer to 
information compiled by the 
California Department of 
Forestry and Fire Protection 
regarding the state’s 
inventory of forest land, 
including  the Forest and 
Range Assessment Project 
and the Forest Legacy 
Assessment project; and 
forest carbon measurement 
methodology provided in 
Forest protocols adopted by 
the California Air Resources 
Board. -- Would the project: 

      

a) Convert Prime 
Farmland, Unique 
Farmland, or Farmland 
of Statewide Importance 
(Farmland), as shown on 
the maps prepared 
pursuant to the Farmland 
Mapping and Monitoring 
Program of the 
California Resources 
Agency, to non-
agricultural use? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

79



Infill Environmental Checklist Form Page 7 of 23 FORM “S” 
 

 
Significant 
Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 
With 
Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

No 
Impact 

Analyzed 
in the 
Prior 
EIR 

Substantially 
Mitigated by 
Uniformly 
Applicable 
Development 
Policies 

b) Conflict with existing 
zoning for agricultural 
use, or a Williamson Act 
contract? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

c) Conflict with existing 
zoning for, or cause 
rezoning of, forest land 
(as defined in Public 
Resources Code section 
12220(g)), timberland 
(as defined by Public 
Resources Code section 
4526), or timberland 
zoned Timberland 
Production (as defined 
by Government Code 
section 51104(g))? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

d) Result in the loss of 
forest land or conversion 
of forest land to non-
forest use? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

e) Involve other changes in 
the existing environment 
which, due to their 
location or nature, could 
result in conversion of 
Farmland, to non-
agricultural use or 
conversion of forest land 
to non-forest use? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

III. AIR QUALITY.  Where 
available, the significance 
criteria established by the 
applicable air quality 
management district or air 
pollution control district may 
be relied upon to make the 
following determinations.  
Would the project: 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

a) Conflict with or obstruct 
implementation of the 
applicable air quality 
plan? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

80



Infill Environmental Checklist Form Page 8 of 23 FORM “S” 
 

 
Significant 
Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 
With 
Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

No 
Impact 

Analyzed 
in the 
Prior 
EIR 

Substantially 
Mitigated by 
Uniformly 
Applicable 
Development 
Policies 

b) Result in a cumulatively 
considerable net increase 
of any criteria pollutant 
for which the project 
region is non-attainment 
under an applicable 
federal or state ambient 
air quality standard? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

c) Expose sensitive 
receptors to substantial 
pollutant concentrations? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

d) Result in other emissions 
(such as those leading to 
odors) adversely 
affecting a substantial 
number of people? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

IV. BIOLOGICAL 
RESOURCES.  Would the 
project: 

      

a) Have a substantial 
adverse effect, either 
directly or through 
habitat modifications, on 
any species identified as 
a candidate, sensitive, or 
special status species in 
local or regional plans, 
policies, or regulations, 
or by the California 
Department of Fish and 
Game or U.S. Fish and 
Wildlife Service? 

☒ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

b) Have a substantial 
adverse effect on any 
riparian habitat or other 
sensitive natural 
community identified in 
local or regional plans, 
policies, regulations or 
by the California 
Department of Fish and 
Game or U.S. Fish and 
Wildlife Service? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

81



Infill Environmental Checklist Form Page 9 of 23 FORM “S” 
 

 
Significant 
Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 
With 
Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

No 
Impact 

Analyzed 
in the 
Prior 
EIR 

Substantially 
Mitigated by 
Uniformly 
Applicable 
Development 
Policies 

c) Have a substantial 
adverse effect on state or 
federally protected 
wetlands (including, but 
not limited to, marsh, 
vernal pool, coastal, etc.) 
through direct removal, 
filling, hydrological 
interruption, or other 
means? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

d) Interfere substantially 
with the movement of 
any native resident or 
migratory fish or wildlife 
species or with 
established native 
resident or migratory 
wildlife corridors, or 
impede the use of native 
wildlife nursery sites? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

e) Conflict with any local 
policies or ordinances 
protecting biological 
resources, such as a tree 
preservation policy or 
ordinance? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

f) Conflict with the 
provisions of an adopted 
Habitat Conservation 
Plan, Natural 
Community 
Conservation Plan, or 
other approved local, 
regional, or state habitat 
conservation plan? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

V. CULTURAL 
RESOURCES.  Would the 
project: 

      

a) Cause a substantial 
adverse change in the 
significance of a 
historical resource 
pursuant to § 15064.5? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

82



Infill Environmental Checklist Form Page 10 of 23 FORM “S” 
 

 
Significant 
Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 
With 
Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

No 
Impact 

Analyzed 
in the 
Prior 
EIR 

Substantially 
Mitigated by 
Uniformly 
Applicable 
Development 
Policies 

b) Cause a substantial 
adverse change in the 
significance of an 
archaeological resource 
pursuant to § 15064.5? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

c) Disturb any human 
remains, including those 
interred outside of 
dedicated cemeteries? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

VI. ENERGY.  Would the 
project: 

      

a) Result in potentially 
significant 
environmental impact 
due to wasteful, 
inefficient, or 
unnecessary 
consumption of energy 
resources, during project 
construction or 
operation? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

b) Conflict with or obstruct 
a state or local plan for 
renewable energy or 
energy efficiency? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

VII. GEOLOGY AND SOILS.  
Would the project: 

      

a) Directly or indirectly 
cause potential 
substantial adverse 
effects, including the risk 
of loss, injury or death 
involving: 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

83



Infill Environmental Checklist Form Page 11 of 23 FORM “S” 
 

 
Significant 
Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 
With 
Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

No 
Impact 

Analyzed 
in the 
Prior 
EIR 

Substantially 
Mitigated by 
Uniformly 
Applicable 
Development 
Policies 

i) Rupture of a known 
earthquake fault, as 
delineated on the 
most recent Alquist-
Priolo Earthquake 
Fault Zoning Map 
issued by the State 
Geologist for the 
area or based on 
other substantial 
evidence of a known 
fault?  Refer to 
Division of Mines 
and Geology Special 
Publication 42. 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

ii) Strong seismic 
ground shaking? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

iii) Seismic-related 
ground failure, 
including 
liquefaction? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

iv) Landslides? ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

b) Result in substantial soil 
erosion or the loss of 
topsoil? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

c) Be located on a geologic 
unit or soil that is 
unstable, or that would 
become unstable as a 
result of the project, and 
potentially result in on- 
or off-site landslide, 
lateral spreading, 
subsidence, liquefaction 
or collapse? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

d) Be located on expansive 
soil, as defined in Table 
18-1-B of the Uniform 
Building Code, creating 
substantial direct or 
indirect risks to life or 
property? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

84



Infill Environmental Checklist Form Page 12 of 23 FORM “S” 
 

 
Significant 
Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 
With 
Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

No 
Impact 

Analyzed 
in the 
Prior 
EIR 

Substantially 
Mitigated by 
Uniformly 
Applicable 
Development 
Policies 

e) Have soils incapable of 
adequately supporting 
the use of septic tanks or 
alternative waste water 
disposal systems where 
sewers are not available 
for the disposal of waste 
water? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

f) Directly or indirectly 
destroy a unique 
paleontological resource 
or site or unique 
geologic feature? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

VIII. GREENHOUSE GAS 
EMISSIONS.  Would the 
project: 

      

a) Generate greenhouse gas 
emissions, either directly 
or indirectly, that may 
have a significant impact 
on the environment? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

b) Conflict with an 
applicable plan, policy or 
regulation adopted for 
the purpose of reducing 
the emission of 
greenhouse gases? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

IX. HAZARDS AND 
HAZARDOUS 
MATERIALS.  Would the 
project: 

      

a) Create a significant 
hazard to the public or 
the environment through 
the routine transport, 
use, or disposal of 
hazardous materials? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

b) Create a significant 
hazard to the public or 
the environment through 
reasonably foreseeable 
upset and accident 
conditions involving the 
release of hazardous 
materials into the 
environment? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

85



Infill Environmental Checklist Form Page 13 of 23 FORM “S” 
 

 
Significant 
Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 
With 
Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

No 
Impact 

Analyzed 
in the 
Prior 
EIR 

Substantially 
Mitigated by 
Uniformly 
Applicable 
Development 
Policies 

c) Emit hazardous 
emissions or handle 
hazardous or acutely 
hazardous materials, 
substances, or waste 
within one-quarter mile 
of an existing or 
proposed school? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

d) Be located on a site 
which is included on a 
list of hazardous 
materials sites compiled 
pursuant to Government 
Code section 65962.5 
and, as a result, would it 
create a significant 
hazard to the public or 
the environment? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

e) For a project located 
within an airport land 
use plan or, where such a 
plan has not been 
adopted, within two 
miles of a public airport 
or public use airport, 
would the project result 
in a safety hazard or 
excessive noise for 
people residing or 
working in the project 
area? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

f) Impair implementation 
of or physically interfere 
with an adopted 
emergency response plan 
or emergency evacuation 
plan? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

g) Expose people or 
structures, either directly 
or indirectly, to a 
significant risk of loss, 
injury or death involving 
wildland fires? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

86



Infill Environmental Checklist Form Page 14 of 23 FORM “S” 
 

 
Significant 
Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 
With 
Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

No 
Impact 

Analyzed 
in the 
Prior 
EIR 

Substantially 
Mitigated by 
Uniformly 
Applicable 
Development 
Policies 

X. HYDROLOGY AND 
WATER QUALITY.  
Would the project: 

      

a) Violate any water quality 
standards or waste 
discharge requirements 
or otherwise 
substantially degrade 
surface or ground water 
quality? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

b) Substantially decrease 
groundwater supplies or 
interfere substantially 
with groundwater 
recharge such that the 
project may impede 
sustainable groundwater 
management of the 
basin? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

c) Substantially alter the 
existing drainage pattern 
of the site or area, 
including through the 
alteration of the course 
of a stream or river or 
through the addition of 
impervious surfaces, in a 
manner which would: 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

i) result in substantial 
erosion or siltation 
on- or off-site; 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

ii) substantially 
increase the rate or 
amount of surface 
runoff in a manner 
which would result 
in flooding on- or 
offsite; 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

87



Infill Environmental Checklist Form Page 15 of 23 FORM “S” 
 

 
Significant 
Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 
With 
Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

No 
Impact 

Analyzed 
in the 
Prior 
EIR 

Substantially 
Mitigated by 
Uniformly 
Applicable 
Development 
Policies 

iii) create or contribute 
runoff water which 
would exceed the 
capacity of existing 
or planned 
stormwater drainage 
systems or provide 
substantial 
additional sources of 
polluted runoff; or 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

iv) impede or redirect 
flood flows? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

d) In flood hazard, tsunami, 
or seiche zones, risk 
release of pollutants due 
to project inundation? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

e) Conflict with or obstruct 
implementation of a 
water quality control 
plan or sustainable 
groundwater 
management plan? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

XI. LAND USE AND 
PLANNING.  Would the 
project: 

      

a) Physically divide an 
established community? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

b) Cause a significant 
environmental impact 
due to a conflict with 
any land use plan, 
policy, or regulation 
adopted for the purpose 
of avoiding or mitigating 
an environmental effect? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

XII. MINERAL RESOURCES.  
Would the project: 

      

a) Result in the loss of 
availability of a known 
mineral resource that 
would be of value to the 
region and the residents 
of the state? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

88



Infill Environmental Checklist Form Page 16 of 23 FORM “S” 
 

 
Significant 
Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 
With 
Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

No 
Impact 

Analyzed 
in the 
Prior 
EIR 

Substantially 
Mitigated by 
Uniformly 
Applicable 
Development 
Policies 

b) Result in the loss of 
availability of a locally-
important mineral 
resource recovery site 
delineated on a local 
general plan, specific 
plan or other land use 
plan? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

XIII. NOISE.  Would the 
project result in: 

      

a) Generation of a 
substantial temporary or 
permanent increase in 
ambient noise levels in 
the vicinity of the project 
in excess of standards 
established in the local 
general plan or noise 
ordinance, or applicable 
standards of other 
agencies? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

b) Generation of excessive 
groundborne vibration or 
groundborne noise 
levels? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

c) For a project located 
within the vicinity of a 
private airstrip or an 
airport land use plan or, 
where such a plan has 
not been adopted, within 
two miles of a public 
airport or public use 
airport, would the project 
expose people residing 
or working in the project 
area to excessive noise 
levels? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

89



Infill Environmental Checklist Form Page 17 of 23 FORM “S” 
 

 
Significant 
Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 
With 
Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

No 
Impact 

Analyzed 
in the 
Prior 
EIR 

Substantially 
Mitigated by 
Uniformly 
Applicable 
Development 
Policies 

XIV. POPULATION AND 
HOUSING.  Would the 
project: 

      

a) Induce substantial 
unplanned population 
growth in an area, either 
directly (for example, by 
proposing new homes 
and businesses) or 
indirectly (for example, 
through extension of 
road or other 
infrastructure)? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

b) Displace substantial 
numbers of existing 
people or housing, 
necessitating the 
construction of 
replacement housing 
elsewhere? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

XV. PUBLIC SERVICES.  
Would the project: 

      

a) Result in substantial 
adverse physical impacts 
associated with the 
provision of new or 
physically altered 
governmental facilities, 
need for new or 
physically altered 
governmental facilities, 
the construction of 
which could cause 
significant 
environmental impacts, 
in order to maintain 
acceptable service ratios, 
response times or other 
performance objectives 
for any of the public 
services: 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

Fire protection? ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

Police protection? ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

Schools? ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

90



Infill Environmental Checklist Form Page 18 of 23 FORM “S” 
 

 
Significant 
Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 
With 
Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

No 
Impact 

Analyzed 
in the 
Prior 
EIR 

Substantially 
Mitigated by 
Uniformly 
Applicable 
Development 
Policies 

Parks? ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

Other public facilities? ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

XVI. RECREATION.         

a) Would the project 
increase the use of 
existing neighborhood 
and regional parks or 
other recreational 
facilities such that 
substantial physical 
deterioration of the 
facility would occur or 
be accelerated? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

b) Does the project include 
recreational facilities or 
require the construction 
or expansion of 
recreational facilities 
which have an adverse 
physical effect on the 
environment? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

XVII. TRANSPORTATION.  
Would the project: 

      

a) Conflict with program 
plan, ordinance or policy 
addressing the 
circulation system, 
including transit, 
roadway, bicycle and 
pedestrian facilities?  

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

b) Conflict or be 
inconsistent with CEQA 
Guidelines section 
15064.3, subdivision 
(b)? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

c) Substantially increase 
hazards due to a 
geometric design feature 
(e.g., sharp curves or 
dangerous intersections) 
or incompatible uses 
(e.g., farm equipment)? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

91



Infill Environmental Checklist Form Page 19 of 23 FORM “S” 
 

 
Significant 
Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 
With 
Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

No 
Impact 

Analyzed 
in the 
Prior 
EIR 

Substantially 
Mitigated by 
Uniformly 
Applicable 
Development 
Policies 

d) Result in inadequate 
emergency access? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

XVIII. TRIBAL CULTURAL 
RESOURCES.  Would the 
project: 

      

a) Cause a substantial adverse 
change in the significance 
of a tribal cultural resource, 
defined in Public 
Resources Code section 
21074 as either a site, 
feature, place, cultural 
landscape that is 
geographically defined in 
terms of the size and scope 
of the landscape, sacred 
place, or object with 
cultural value to a 
California Native 
American tribe, and that is: 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

i) Listed or eligible for 
listing in the 
California Register 
of Historical 
Resources, or in a 
local register of 
historical resources 
as defined in Public 
Resources Code 
section 5020.1(k), or 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

92



Infill Environmental Checklist Form Page 20 of 23 FORM “S” 
 

 
Significant 
Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 
With 
Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

No 
Impact 

Analyzed 
in the 
Prior 
EIR 

Substantially 
Mitigated by 
Uniformly 
Applicable 
Development 
Policies 

ii) A resource 
determined by the 
lead agency, in its 
discretion and 
supported by 
substantial evidence, 
to be significant 
pursuant to criteria 
set forth in 
subdivision (c) of 
Public Resources 
Code section 
5024.1.  In applying 
the criteria set forth 
in subdivision (c) of 
Public Resources 
Code section 
5024.1, the lead 
agency shall 
consider the 
significance of the 
resource to a 
California Native 
American tribe. 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

XIX. UTILITIES AND 
SERVICE SYSTEMS.  
Would the project: 

      

a) Require or result in the 
relocation or 
construction of new or 
expanded water, 
wastewater treatment or 
storm water drainage, 
electric power, natural 
gas, or 
telecommunications 
facilities, the 
construction or 
relocation of which 
could cause significant 
environmental effects? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

b) Have sufficient water 
supplies available to 
serve the project and 
reasonably foreseeable 
future development 
during normal, dry and 
multiple dry years?   

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

93



Infill Environmental Checklist Form Page 21 of 23 FORM “S” 
 

 
Significant 
Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 
With 
Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

No 
Impact 

Analyzed 
in the 
Prior 
EIR 

Substantially 
Mitigated by 
Uniformly 
Applicable 
Development 
Policies 

c) Result in a determination 
by the wastewater 
treatment provider which 
serves or may serve the 
project that it has 
adequate capacity to 
serve the project's 
projected demand in 
addition to the provider's 
existing commitments? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

d) Generate solid waste in 
excess of State or local 
standards, or in excess of 
the capacity of local 
infrastructure, or 
otherwise impair the 
attainment of solid waste 
reduction goals? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

e) Comply with federal, 
state, and local 
management and 
reduction statutes and 
regulations related to 
solid waste? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

XX. WILDFIRE.  If located in 
or near state responsibility 
areas or lands classified as 
very high fire hazard 
severity zones, would the 
project: 

      

a) Substantially impair an 
adopted emergency 
response plan or 
emergency evacuation 
plan? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

b) Due to slope, prevailing 
winds, and other factors, 
exacerbate wildfire risks, 
and thereby expose 
project occupants to, 
pollutant concentrations 
from a wildfire or the 
uncontrolled spread of a 
wildfire? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

94



Infill Environmental Checklist Form Page 22 of 23 FORM “S” 
 

 
Significant 
Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 
With 
Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

No 
Impact 

Analyzed 
in the 
Prior 
EIR 

Substantially 
Mitigated by 
Uniformly 
Applicable 
Development 
Policies 

c) Require the installation 
or maintenance of 
associated infrastructure 
(such as roads, fuel 
breaks, emergency water 
sources, power lines or 
other utilities) that may 
exacerbate fire risk or 
that may result in 
temporary or ongoing 
impacts to the 
environment? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

d) Expose people or 
structures to significant 
risks, including 
downslope or 
downstream flooding or 
landslides, as a result of 
runoff, post-fire slope 
instability, or drainage 
changes? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

XXI. MANDATORY 
FINDINGS OF 
SIGNIFICANCE.  (State 
CEQA Guidelines section 
15065(a).) 

      

a) Does the project have the 
potential to substantially 
degrade the quality of 
the environment, 
substantially reduce the 
habitat of a fish or 
wildlife species, cause a 
fish or wildlife 
population to drop below 
self-sustaining levels, 
threaten to eliminate a 
plant or animal 
community, substantially 
reduce the number or 
restrict the range of a 
rare or endangered plant 
or animal or eliminate 
important examples of 
the major periods of 
California history or 
prehistory? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

95



Infill Environmental Checklist Form Page 23 of 23 FORM “S” 
 

 
Significant 
Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 
With 
Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

No 
Impact 

Analyzed 
in the 
Prior 
EIR 

Substantially 
Mitigated by 
Uniformly 
Applicable 
Development 
Policies 

b) Does the project have the 
potential to achieve 
short-term 
environmental goals to 
the disadvantage of long-
term environmental 
goals? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

c) Does the project have 
impacts that are 
individually limited, but 
cumulatively 
considerable?  
(“Cumulatively 
considerable” means that 
the incremental effects 
of a project are 
considerable when 
viewed in connection 
with the effects of past 
projects, the effects of 
other current project, and 
the effects of probable 
future projects.) 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

d) Does the project have 
environmental effects 
which will cause 
substantial adverse 
effects on human beings, 
either directly or 
indirectly? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

 
Authority:  Public Resources Code Sections 21083, 21094.5.5 
Reference: Public Resources Code Sections 21094.5 and 21094.5.5 

96



BOARD MEMORANDUM 

SUMMARY 

The State of California Department of Water Resources (DWR) has requested that Santa Clarita 
Valley Water Agency (SCV Water) renew its contract with the DWR to provide bacterial analysis 
on raw and treated water for certain DWR facilities. SCV Water will charge DWR a $55 fee for 
each raw water sample and a $40 fee for each treated water sample and Heterotrophic Plate 
Count. 

On June 6, 2024, the Engineering and Operations Committee met to consider staff’s 
recommendation to approve adopting a resolution authorizing Santa Clarita Valley Water 
Agency to Provide Water Quality Laboratory Testing Services to the State of California 
Department of Water Resources 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 

The fees cover SCV Water’s costs to provide the microbiological analyses. 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

The Engineering and Operations Committee recommends that the Board of Directors approve 
adopting the attached resolution authorizing SCV Water to provide the requested bacterial 
analysis from July 1, 2024 to June 30, 2028 for a fee of $55 per raw water sample and a fee of 
$40 per treated water sample and Heterotrophic Plate Count. 

Attachment 

DATE: June 7, 2024 

TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Keith Abercrombie 
Chief Operating Officer 

SUBJECT: Approve Adopting a Resolution Authorizing Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 
to Provide Water Quality Laboratory Testing Services to the State of California 
Department of Water Resources 

97

April Jacobs
Item 6.3

April Jacobs
KA

April Jacobs
Matt Stone



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

98



 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO.  SCV-XXX 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY 

AUTHORIZING THE SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY 
TO PROVIDE WATER QUALITY LABORATORY TESTING SERVICE 

TO THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT 
OF WATER RESOURCES 

 
 

WHEREAS, the State of California Department of Water Resources has requested that the 
Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency provide bacterial analysis on raw and treated water system 
that serves the local facilities such as lower plants; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency laboratory facilities can at this time provide 
this service. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency is 
authorized to provide the requested bacterial analyses commencing on July 1, 2024 through 
June 30, 2028, subject to a charge and payment by the State of California Department of Water 
Resources of a $55 fee per raw water sample and $40 fee per treated water sample and 
Heterotrophic Plate Count. 

 
 

99



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

100



BOARD MEMORANDUM 

SUMMARY 

On January 16, 2024, the Board of Directors authorized the Beldove (Copper Hill) Tank 2 
Recoat Project, which began on April 8, 2024. The work consists of removing and replacing the 
interior linings and spot repairs of the exterior coating to maintain the integrity and service life. 
During the project, a necessary change of scope for the roof rafters has been identified.  

Staff recommends that the Engineering and Operations Committee recommend the Board of 
Directors authorize the General Manager to execute these change orders in an amount not to 
exceed $90,985.94 for the Beldove (Copper Hill) Water Storage Tank 2 Coating Project. 

DISCUSSION 

The Beldove (Copper Hill) Tank 2 is a welded steel, above ground storage tank. The tank is 
approximately 105 feet in diameter by 32 feet high, providing a nominal capacity of 2 million 
gallons. There is one interior and one exterior ladder, each leading to the single roof access 
hatch. The tank rests within a steel grade band enclosing the lower tank chime. All the interior 
steel surfaces, including the roof, shell, support members, tank bottom and appurtenances are 
coated with a thin film epoxy. The upper interior chime is caulked, but the roof lap seams are 
not. The exterior roof, shell, and appurtenances are painted with the original alkyd paint system. 
The tank lining has reached the end of its service life, and there are isolated locations with 
significant corrosion. Significant corrosion has developed on the edges of the roof support 
structure, roof support bars, and the upper interior ladder. The exterior has rust on the center 
roof vent. The contract was awarded in the amount of $582,897.00. 

In addition to the work discussed above, a necessary change of scope (Proposed Change 
Order 1.1 and Proposed Change Order 1.2) for the roof rafters and demobilization/mobilization 
have been identified at a cost of $47,965.09 and $13,020.85 respectively. Upon sand blasting 

DATE: June 7, 2024 

TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Keith Abercrombie 
Chief Operating Officer 

SUBJECT: Approve a Change Order for the Beldove (Copper Hill) Water Storage Tank 2 
Coating Project   

Beldove (Copper Hill) Tank 2 Coating Project Amount 
Change Orders 
Proposed Change Order 1.1 - Roof Rafter Remove/Replace $47,965.09 
Proposed Change Order 1.2 - Demobilization/Mobilization $13,020.85 
Subtotal $60,985.94 
Additional Contingency $30,000.00 
TOTAL $90,985.94 

101

April Jacobs
Item 6.4

April Jacobs
KA



 

 

the rafters inside the tank to remove the lining, it was discovered that additional repairs are 
needed to this area. The area of corrosion concern was identified around the outer five feet of 
eleven inner rafters. The recommendation is to remove five-foot sections of the eleven rafters 
and replace them with new like-in-kind members that have first been abrasive blasted and fully 
coated on the tops and sides with the approved interior coating system. In order to facilitate a 
timely completion of the Project, staff is also requesting that the Board of Directors provide the 
General Manager an additional contingency for up to $30,000 in further change orders. This will 
avoid future demobilization/mobilization expenses.  
 
On June 6, 2024, the Engineering and Operations Committee met to consider staff’s 
recommendation to approve a change order for the Beldove (Copper Hill) Water Storage Tank 2 
Coating Project. 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN NEXUS 
 
This project supports Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency’s Strategic Plan B.1.1 – Implement 
capital projects related to infrastructure reliability. 
 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
Funding for Beldove (Copper Hill) Water Storage Tank 2 Coating Project is provided through the 
CIP Storage Tank Improvements & Replacements budget and is included in the FY 2023/24 
Budget. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Engineering and Operations Committee recommends the Board of Directors authorize the 
General Manager to execute these change orders in an amount not to exceed $60,985.94 and 
provide the General Manager authority to execute additional change orders for up to $30,000 
without returning to the Board, if necessary, for a total of $90,985.94, for the Beldove (Copper 
Hill) Water Storage Tank 2 Coating Project. 

102

April Jacobs
Matt Stone



R
EC

O
M

M
EN

D
 A

PP
R

O
VA

L 
O

F 
A 

C
H

A
N

G
E 

O
R

D
ER

 
FO

R
 B

EL
D

O
VE

 (C
O

PP
ER

H
IL

L)
 W

AT
ER

 S
TO

R
A

G
E 

TA
N

K
 2

  C
O

AT
IN

G
 P

R
O

JE
C

T 
 

R
eg

ul
ar

 B
oa

rd
 M

ee
tin

g 
Ju

ne
 1

8,
 2

02
4

Ja
m

es
 S

ae
nz

W
at

er
 S

ys
te

m
s 

Su
pe

rv
is

or

103



B
E

LD
O

V
E

 T
A

N
K

 2
 C

O
A

T
IN

G

•
Pr

oj
ec

t B
eg

an
 o

n 
Ap

ril
 8

, 2
02

4 

•
In

te
rio

r L
in

in
gs

 a
nd

 E
xt

er
io

r 
R

ep
ai

rs

•
R

oo
f R

af
te

rs
 N

ee
di

ng
 

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t

2

1
2

104



B
E

LD
O

V
E

 T
A

N
K

 2
 C

O
A

T
IN

G

3

B
el

do
ve

 (C
op

pe
rh

ill
) T

an
k 

2 
C

oa
tin

g 
Pr

oj
ec

t
A

m
ou

nt
C

on
tra

ct
 A

w
ar

d,
 J

an
ua

ry
 1

6,
 2

02
4

$5
82

,8
97

.0
0

C
ha

ng
e 

O
rd

er
s

Pr
op

os
ed

 C
ha

ng
e 

O
rd

er
 1

.1
 - 

R
oo

f R
af

te
r R

em
ov

e/
R

ep
la

ce
$4

7,
96

5.
09

Pr
op

os
ed

 C
ha

ng
e 

O
rd

er
 1

.2
 - 

D
em

ob
iliz

at
io

n/
M

ob
iliz

at
io

n
$1

3,
02

0.
85

Ad
di

tio
na

l C
on

tin
ge

nc
y

$3
0,

00
0.

00
TO

TA
L

$9
0,

98
5.

94

105



4106



5107



S
T

R
A

T
E

G
IC

 P
LA

N
 O

B
JE

C
T

IV
E

S

Th
is

 P
ro

je
ct

 S
up

po
rts

 S
an

ta
 C

la
rit

a 
Va

lle
y 

W
at

er
 A

ge
nc

y’
s 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
Pl

an
 B

.1
.1

 –
 Im

pl
em

en
t C

ap
ita

l P
ro

je
ct

s 
R

el
at

ed
 

to
 In

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

R
el

ia
bi

lit
y.

6

108



FI
N

A
N

C
IA

L 
C

O
N

S
ID

E
R

A
T

IO
N

S
 

Fu
nd

in
g 

fo
r B

el
do

ve
 (C

op
pe

r H
ill)

 W
at

er
 S

to
ra

ge
 T

an
k 

2 
C

oa
tin

g 
Pr

oj
ec

t i
s 

pr
ov

id
ed

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

C
IP

 S
to

ra
ge

 T
an

k 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 &

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

ts
 B

ud
ge

t a
nd

 is
 in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 
th

e 
FY

 2
02

3/
24

 B
ud

ge
t.

7

109



R
E

C
O

M
M

E
N

D
A

T
IO

N

Th
e 

En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

an
d 

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 re
co

m
m

en
ds

 
th

e 
Bo

ar
d 

of
 D

ire
ct

or
s 

au
th

or
iz

e 
th

e 
G

en
er

al
 M

an
ag

er
 to

 
ex

ec
ut

e 
th

es
e 

ch
an

ge
 o

rd
er

s 
in

 a
n 

am
ou

nt
 n

ot
 to

 e
xc

ee
d 

$6
0,

98
5.

94
 a

nd
 p

ro
vi

de
 th

e 
G

en
er

al
 M

an
ag

er
 a

ut
ho

rit
y 

to
 

ex
ec

ut
e 

ad
di

tio
na

l c
ha

ng
e 

or
de

rs
 fo

r u
p 

to
 $

30
,0

00
 w

ith
ou

t 
re

tu
rn

in
g 

to
 th

e 
Bo

ar
d,

 if
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

, f
or

 a
 to

ta
l o

f $
90

,9
85

.9
4,

 
fo

r t
he

 B
el

do
ve

 (C
op

pe
rh

ill)
 W

at
er

 S
to

ra
ge

 T
an

k 
2 

C
oa

tin
g 

Pr
oj

ec
t.

8

110



BOARD MEMORANDUM 

SUMMARY 

As part of its surface water treatment process, SCV Water operates the Rio Vista Intake Pump 
Station (RVIPS) which is the sole means of suppling the Rio Vista Water Treatment Plant 
(RVWTP) with raw water from Castaic Lake via the Metropolitan Water District (MWD) Foothill 
Feeder. Located at the RVIPS are five vertical turbine pumps with a range of flows between 8 
and 66 million gallons per day (MGD) to meet system demands. The pump motors are medium 
voltage (4160 volt) and to minimize inrush current their respective control centers employ a part 
winding start using a reduced voltage auto transformer starter (RVATS). Flows to the RVWTP 
are varied by starting a combination of pumps and using throttling valves on pumps #1 and #2 
to match desired flows. The pump controls for four of the five pumps and the two flow throttling 
valves have been in service since 1995. Due to their flow flexibility, pumps 1 and 2 have seen 
the most service. 

DISCUSSION 

As part of SCV Water’s comprehensive preventative maintenance program, staff continually 
evaluate critical systems such as the intake pump stations for the likelihood of failure. The 
evaluations consider equipment age, maintenance records and expected service life along with 
availability of replacement parts for critical components. Due to the RVIPS’s age and the 
obsolescence of the motor controls, staff recommends retrofitting existing motor controls with 
newer more readily available components to extend the useful life of the pump station and 
improve its reliability. 

SCV Water Treatment Operations will take a phased approach to the RVIPS upgrades to 
spread out the costs and minimize impacts on plant operations. Due to their high service hours 
Staff selected pumps #1 and #2 for the first upgrades. An evaluation of available alternatives 
resulted in selection of a variable frequency drive (VFD) as the preferred method for upgrading 
the existing pump controls. Converting the RVATS to VFD not only modernizes the control 
system but helps to ensure that SCV Water continues to meet its mission of Providing 
responsible water stewardship to ensure the Santa Clarita Valley has reliable supplies of high-
quality water at a reasonable cost by reducing total cost of ownership through reduced energy 
consumption and wear and tear on Equipment. Additionally, a VFD will reduce risk to electrical 
staff performing equipment troubleshooting and provide greater flexibility to operational system 
demands.  

DATE: June 7, 2024 

TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Keith Abercrombie 
Chief Operating Officer 

SUBJECT: Approve a Contract with Royal Industrial Solutions for the Rio Vista Intake 
Pump Station Controls Modernization Project 

111

April Jacobs
Item 6.5

April Jacobs
KA



 

 

Pursuant to Public Contract Code Section 3400 (c), to ensure continuous operations, facilitate 
maintenance of the essential facilities, and match existing units in service, SCV Water has 
designated Rockwell Automation as the sole source supplier for VFDs. The following table 
provides details on one (1) quote received by staff from the authorized distributor, Royal 
Industrial Solutions. 
 

Item Quantity Price Total 

Medium Voltage Variable Frequency 
Drive 2 $159,500.00  $319,000.00  

RVATS to VFD parts and labor 2 $91,300.00  $182,600.00  
Start-Up and Commissioning 1 $12,500.00  $12,500.00  
Tax 1 9.50% $47,652.00  
Subtotal $561,752.00  
Contingency $25,000.00 $25,000.00 
Total $586,752.00 

 
On June 6, 2024, the Engineering and Operations Committee met to consider staff’s 
recommendation to authorize the General Manager to enter into contract with Royal Industrial 
Solutions for the Rio Vista Intake Pump Station Controls Modernization Project. 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN NEXUS 
 
This project supports SCV Water’s Strategic Plan B.1.1 – Implement Capital Projects Related to 
Infrastructure Reliability, and Strategic Plan B.2 – Plan and Budget for Long-Term Replacements 
and Improvements. 
 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
Funds for this project are included in the FY 2023/24 and 2024/2025 Capital Improvement 
Program (CIP) for Rio Vista Intake Pump Stations Improvements and Replacements.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Engineering and Operations Committee recommends that the Board of Directors authorize 
the General Manager to contract with Royal Industrial Solutions to complete the Rio Vista Intake 
Pump Station Controls Modernization Project in the amount not to exceed $561,752 and to 
authorize additional expenditures as needed up to $25,000 for a project total of $586,752. 

112

April Jacobs
Matt Stone



S
C

V
W

A
T

E
R

R
IO

 V
IS

TA
 I

N
TA

K
E

 P
U

M
P

 S
TA

T
IO

N
 C

O
N

T
R

O
LS

 
M

O
D

E
R

N
IZ

A
T

IO
N

 P
R

O
JE

C
T

 

R
eg

ul
ar

 B
oa

rd
 M

ee
tin

g
Ju

ne
 1

8,
 2

02
4

R
af

ae
l P

ul
id

o
W

at
er

 T
re

at
m

en
t M

an
ag

er

113



R
V

W
T

P
 S

ou
rc

e 
W

at
er

C
as

ta
ic

 L
ak

e
R

VI
PS

R
VW

TP

2114



R
io

 V
is

ta
 I

nt
ak

e 
P

um
p 

S
ta

ti
on

Fi
ve

 P
um

ps
R

VA
TS

Fl
ow

 C
on

tro
l

3115



A
S

S
E

S
S

M
E

N
T


Li

ke
lih

oo
d 

of
 F

ai
lu

re


Ag
e


R

ec
or

ds
 


Ex

pe
ct

ed
 S

er
vi

ce
 L

ife


Pa
rts

 A
va

ila
bi

lit
y


O

pt
io

ns


R
ep

la
ce

 w
ith

 L
ik

e 
C

om
po

ne
nt

s


In
st

al
l S

of
t S

ta
rt


VF

D

4

116



N
E

X
T

 S
T

E
P

S
 


Ph

as
ed

 a
pp

ro
ac

h


Pu
m

ps
 1

 &
 2

 F
Y 

20
23

/2
4 

& 
20

24
/2

5


Pu
m

ps
 3

 th
ro

ug
h 

5 
in

 fu
tu

re
 F

Y’
s

5

117



S
T

R
A

T
E

G
IC

 P
LA

N
 O

B
JE

C
T

IV
E

S

Th
is

 p
ro

je
ct

 s
up

po
rts

 S
C

V 
W

at
er

’s
 S

tra
te

gi
c 

Pl
an

 B
.1

.1
 –

 
Im

pl
em

en
t C

ap
ita

l P
ro

je
ct

s 
R

el
at

ed
 to

 In
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
R

el
ia

bi
lit

y,
 a

nd
 S

tra
te

gi
c 

Pl
an

 B
.2

 –
 P

la
n 

an
d 

Bu
dg

et
 fo

r 
Lo

ng
-T

er
m

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
.

6

118



FI
N

A
N

C
IA

L 
C

O
N

S
ID

E
R

A
T

IO
N

S

Ite
m

Q
ua

nt
ity

Pr
ic

e
To

ta
l

M
ed

iu
m

 V
ol

ta
ge

 V
ar

ia
bl

e 
Fr

eq
ue

nc
y 

D
riv

e
2

$1
59

,5
00

.0
0 

$3
19

,0
00

.0
0 

RV
AT

S 
to

 V
FD

 p
ar

ts
 a

nd
 la

bo
r

2
$9

1,
30

0.
00

 
$1

82
,6

00
.0

0 
St

ar
t-U

p 
an

d 
C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g
1

$1
2,

50
0.

00
 

$1
2,

50
0.

00
 

Ta
x

1
9.

50
%

$4
7,

65
2.

00
 

Su
bt

ot
al

$5
61

,7
52

.0
0 

C
on

tin
ge

nc
y

$2
5,

00
0.

00
$2

5,
00

0.
00

To
ta

l
$5

86
,7

52
.0

0

7119



R
E

C
O

M
M

E
N

D
A

T
IO

N
Th

e 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g 
an

d 
O

pe
ra

tio
ns

 C
om

m
itt

ee
 re

co
m

m
en

ds
 th

at
 th

e 
Bo

ar
d 

of
 D

ire
ct

or
s 

au
th

or
iz

e 
th

e 
G

en
er

al
 M

an
ag

er
 to

 c
on

tra
ct

 w
ith

 R
oy

al
 

In
du

st
ria

l S
ol

ut
io

ns
 to

 c
om

pl
et

e 
th

e 
R

io
 V

is
ta

 In
ta

ke
 P

um
p 

St
at

io
n 

C
on

tro
ls

 M
od

er
ni

za
tio

n 
Pr

oj
ec

t i
n 

th
e 

am
ou

nt
 n

ot
 to

 e
xc

ee
d 

$5
61

,7
52

 
an

d 
to

 a
ut

ho
riz

e 
ad

di
tio

na
l e

xp
en

di
tu

re
s 

as
 n

ee
de

d 
up

 to
 $

25
,0

00
 fo

r a
 

pr
oj

ec
t t

ot
al

 o
f $

58
6,

75
2.

8120



BOARD MEMORANDUM 

SUMMARY 

Well 205 has been shut down since 2012, when Perchlorate was detected. In addition, low trace 
levels of Volatile Organic Compounds (VOC), in particular, trichloroethylene (TCE) were 
detected. The Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency (Agency) is planning to construct treatment 
improvements to treat Perchlorate and VOCs at its Well 205. The site construction work for the 
Well 205 Perchlorate Groundwater Treatment Improvements Project was advertised, and bids 
have been received. Staff is recommending award of a construction contract to GSE 
Construction Co., Inc. Staff is also recommending approval of purchase orders to Kennedy 
Jenks (KJ) for engineering services during construction and to MWH Constructors (MWH) for 
construction management and inspection services and approval to file a Notice of 
Determination. 

DISCUSSION 

As a result of perchlorate concentrations in the Well 205 water that exceeds the State of 
California’s Division of Drinking Water (DDW) Primary Maximum Contaminant Level (MCL) and 
VOC concentrations that exceed DDW’s detection limit, the Agency is planning to provide 
groundwater treatment at Well 205. Well 205 is located at 24439 Valencia Boulevard, Valencia 
CA. 

The design capacity of Well 205 is 2,700 gallons per minute (gpm). Treatment systems would 
be installed to permit operation of the well at the design capacity to maximize flexibility to use 
Well 205 as a plume containment well. 

The Perchlorate and VOC treatment will use Ion Exchange (IX) and Granular Activated Carbon 
(GAC) technology which includes bag pre-filters and treatment vessels that will capture and 
remove Perchlorate and VOCs to non-detect limits before entering the distribution system. The 
site construction work for the Well 205 Perchlorate Groundwater Treatment Improvements 
Project was advertised for construction on March 4, 2024 with a May 15, 2024 bid opening. Staff 
is recommending award of a construction contract to GSE Construction Co., Inc. Staff is also 
recommending approval of purchase orders to Kennedy Jenks (KJ) for engineering services 

DATE: June 7, 2024 
TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Courtney Mael, P.E. 
Chief Engineer  

SUBJECT: Pursuant to a Previously Adopted Mitigated Negative Declaration and 
Addendum, (1) Approve Adopting a Resolution for a Construction Contract with 
GSE Construction Co., Inc., and Purchase Orders to Kennedy Jenks for 
Engineering Services During Construction and to MWH Constructors for 
Construction Management and Inspection Services and (2) Direct Staff to File 
a Notice of Determination for the Well 205 Perchlorate Groundwater Treatment 
Improvements Project 

121

April Jacobs
Item 7.1

April Jacobs
Courtney Meal



 

 

during construction and to MWH Constructors (MWH) for construction management and 
inspection services. 
 
The construction bid solicitation was advertised in accordance with the Agency’s Purchasing 
Policy, with notices in The Signal on three (3) different dates and on the Agency’s website. On 
May 15, 2024 five (5) construction bids were electronically received and opened. A summary of 
the bids is presented below: 
 

Bidder Bidder Office Location Total Bid Price 
GSE Construction Co., Inc. Livermore, CA $22,196,000 
Metro Builders & Engineers  Newport Beach, CA $22,906,503 

Pacific Hydrotech Corporation Perris, CA $23,941,200 
Kiewit Infrastructure West Co. Sante Fe Springs, CA $28,428,000 

Environmental Construction, Inc. Woodland Hills, CA $33,523,685 
 
The apparent lowest responsive responsible bid is from GSE Construction Co., Inc. for a total of 
$22,196,00. The engineer’s estimate for the project is $22,600,000. GSE Construction Co., Inc. 
is registered with the Department of Industrial Relations and has successfully completed 
projects for the Agency in the past. 

 
CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA) DETERMINATION 
 
The Well 205 Groundwater Treatment Project (Project) is a component of the 2020 Urban Water 
Management Plan. In 2022, the Agency prepared an Initial Study for the Project pursuant to 
CEQA which identified potentially significant effects on the environment which would result from 
the Project and concluded that these impacts can be avoided or reduced to a level of 
insignificance with adoption and implementation of certain mitigation measures therein identified 
and listed. Based on the Initial Study, a Mitigated Negative Declaration (Project MND) and 
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan was prepared in accordance with CEQA, which found 
that any potentially significant environmental effects of the proposed project would be 
sufficiently mitigated to a level of insignificance with implementation of mitigation measures 
specified in the Project MND.  
 
On August 2, 2022, having met all the requirements of the Public Resources Code and the 
State CEQA Guidelines in connection with the preparation of the Project MND, the Santa Clarita 
Valley Water Agency’s Board of Directors, acting as a Lead Agency, adopted the Project MND, 
including installation of a new perchlorate ion exchange treatment system, VOC treatment train, 
backwash system, and various appurtenances. 

Pursuant to State CEQA Guidelines Section 15162, a lead agency shall consider whether 
additional CEQA review is required when considering a subsequent discretionary approval for a 
project for which an MND was adopted. Here, the Agency has determined that, with regard to 
the contract for construction of a VOCs treatment facility at Well 205, engineering services 
during construction, and construction management and inspection services, none of the 
circumstances identified in State CEQA Guidelines Section 15162 have arisen and thus no 
subsequent environmental review is required. 

On June 5, 2024 the Engineering and Operations Committee considered staff’s 
recommendation to approve, pursuant to a previously adopted mitigated negative declaration 

122



 

 

and addendum, of adopting a resolution for a construction contract with GSE Construction Co., 
Inc., and purchase orders to Kennedy Jenks for engineering services during construction and to 
MWH Constructors for construction management and inspection services and directing staff to 
file a notice of determination for the Well 205 Perchlorate Groundwater Treatment 
Improvements Project. 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN NEXUS 
 
This Project helps meet the Agency’s Objective and Strategic Plan Objective B.2.1: “Update 
and carry out capital projects related to water system reliability and sustainability”. 
 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
The project is included in the Agency’s FY 2023/24 Capital Improvement Budget for the Well 
205 Groundwater Improvements Project. The project’s total estimated cost, including planning, 
design, construction management and inspection, construction, and miscellaneous costs, is 
approximately $24,650,000. GSE Construction Co., Inc.’s bid is $22,196,000.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Engineering and Operations Committee recommends that the Santa Clarita Valley 
Water Agency’s Board of Directors, pursuant to the previously adopted Mitigated Negative 
Declaration and Addendum, (1) approve adopting the attached resolution for a construction 
contract with GSE Construction Co., Inc. in an amount not to exceed $22,196,000, and 
authorize the General Manager to execute purchase orders with Kennedy Jenks for an amount 
not to exceed $985,000 for engineering services during construction and with MWH 
Constructors for an amount not to exceed $1,250,000 for construction management and 
inspection services and (2) direct staff to file a Notice of Determination for the Well 205 
Perchlorate Groundwater Treatment Improvements Project. 
 
Attachment 

123

April Jacobs
Matt Stone



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

124



 

RESOLUTION NO. _______ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY 

PURSUANT TO A PREVIOUSLY ADOPTED MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
AND ADDENDUM, (1) AWARDING A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT WITH GSE 

CONSTRUCTION CO., INC., AND PURCHASE ORDERS TO KENNEDY JENKS FOR 
ENGINEERING SERVICES DURING CONSTRUCTION AND TO MWH 

CONSTRUCTORS FOR CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT AND INSPECTION 
SERVICES AND (2) DIRECTING STAFF TO FILE A NOTICE OF DETERMINATION 

FOR THE WELL 205 PERCHLORATE GROUNDWATER TREATMENT 
IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 

 
WHEREAS, the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency (Agency) determined that 
Perchlorate and Volatile Organic Compounds (VOCs) are a threat to the Agency’s 
groundwater resources; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Agency determined that Well 205 will need Perchlorate and VOCs 
Treatment; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Well 205 Perchlorate Groundwater Treatment Improvements Project 
(Project) is an important component to treat Perchlorate and VOCs; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Project will include installation of a new perchlorate ion exchange 
treatment system, VOC treatment train, backwash system, and various appurtenances; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, in 2022, the Agency prepared an Initial Study for the Project pursuant to the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), which identified potentially significant effects 
on the environment which would result from the Project, and concluded that these impacts 
could be avoided or reduced to a level of insignificance with adoption and implementation 
of certain mitigation measures therein identified and listed; and 
 
WHEREAS, based on the Initial Study, a Mitigated Negative Declaration (Project MND) and 
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan was prepared in accordance with CEQA, which 
found that any potentially significant environmental effects of the proposed project would be 
sufficiently mitigated to a level of insignificance with implementation of mitigation measures 
specified in the Project MND; and 
 
WHEREAS, on August 2, 2022, having met all the requirements of the Public Resources 
Code and the State CEQA Guidelines in connection with the preparation of the Project 
MND, the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency’s Board of Directors, acting as a Lead 
Agency, adopted the Project MND; and 
   
WHEREAS, pursuant to State CEQA Guidelines Section 15162, a Lead Agency shall 
consider whether additional CEQA review is required when considering a subsequent 
discretionary approval for a project for which an MND was adopted; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Agency has determined that, with regard to the contract for construction of 
a Perchlorate and VOCs treatment facility at Well 205, engineering services during 
construction, and construction management and inspection services, none of the 

125



 

circumstances identified in State CEQA Guidelines Section 15162 have arisen and thus no 
subsequent environmental review is required; and 
 
WHEREAS, all bid proposals submitted to the Agency pursuant to the Agency’s 
specifications (Project No. 2400417) for procurement of the Well 205 Perchlorate 
Groundwater Treatment Improvements, as amended by Addenda, were publicly opened 
electronically on the Agency’s bid website page on PlanetBids on Wednesday, May 15, 
2024 at 2:00 p.m., in full accordance with the law and the Agency’s customary procedures; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency’s Board of Directors finds, after 
considering the opinion of staff, that the total bid of GSE Construction Co., Inc. in the 
amount of $22,196,000 is the lowest responsible bid of five (5) bids submitted, and that 
said bid substantially meets the requirements of said materials purchase contract 
documents as amended by Addenda; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is in the Agency’s best interest that the Santa Clarita Valley Water 
Agency’s Board of Directors, on behalf of the Agency, authorize its General Manager to 
accept the $22,196,000 bid from GSE Construction Co., Inc. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency’s Board of 
Directors has reviewed and considered the information contained in the adopted MND and 
all supporting documentation, copies of which are on file at the Agency’s office and are 
incorporated by reference as though set forth fully herein. Based on this review, the Santa 
Clarita Valley Water Agency’s Board of Directors finds that any comments received 
regarding Project have been examined and determined to not modify the significant 
conclusions of the MND. The Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency’s Board of Directors 
further finds that no additional feasible mitigation measures within the Santa Clarita Valley 
Water Agency’s Board of Directors authority are necessary to reduce the environmental 
impacts of the Project, because all impacts of the Project are either less than significant, 
will be mitigated to a level of less than significant through compliance with the existing 
mitigation, or remain significant and unavoidable even with the imposition all of feasible 
mitigation. Finally, based on the substantial evidence set forth in the record, including but 
not limited to the adopted MND, the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency’s Board of Directors 
finds that none of the conditions triggering the need for subsequent environmental review 
have occurred. Specifically, the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency’s Board of Directors 
finds that no subsequent environmental review is required pursuant to State CEQA 
Guidelines Section 15162 because: 
  

a. No substantial changes are proposed by the Project which will require major 
revisions of the MND due to the involvement of new significant environmental 
effects or a substantial increase in the severity of previously identified significant 
effects; and 

 
b. No substantial changes have occurred with respect to the circumstances under 

which the Project is being undertaken which will require major revisions of the MND 
due to the involvement of new significant, environmental effects or a substantial 
increase in the severity of previously identified significant effects; and 

 
c. No new information of substantial importance, which was not known and could not 

have been known with the exercise of reasonable diligence at the time the MND 

126



 

was adopted, shows that: (i) either the Project will have one or more new significant 
effects; (ii) significant effects of modifications to the Project examined in the MND 
will be substantially more severe; (iii) mitigation measures or alternatives previously 
found not to be feasible would in fact be feasible and would substantially reduce 
one or more significant effects of the Project , but the Santa Clarita Valley Water 
Agency’s Board of Directors declined to adopt the measure or alternative; or (iv) 
mitigation measures or alternatives which are considerably different from those 
analyzed in the MND would substantially reduce one or more significant effects on 
the environment of the Project, but the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency’s Board 
of Directors declines to adopt the measure or alternative. 

 
RESOLVED FURTHER that the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency’s Board of Directors 
authorize its General Manager to accept GSE Construction Co., Inc.’s bid and does 
therefore authorize the Agency’s General Manager or its Chief Engineer to issue a Notice 
of Award to GSE Construction Co., Inc., hereby found to be the “lowest responsive 
responsible bidder” for the Well 205 Perchlorate Groundwater Treatment Improvements 
Project for the total sum of $22,196,00. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER that the Agency’s General Manager or its President and 
Secretary are thereupon authorized, upon receipt of appropriate payment and 
performance bonds, appropriate certificates of insurance and an executed Contract 
Agreement from GSE Construction Co., Inc., all of which must be approved by General 
Counsel, to execute the said Contract Agreement on behalf of the Agency. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER that the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency's Board of Directors 
authorize its General Manager to issue a purchase order to Kennedy Jenks for 
engineering services during construction for Well 205 Perchlorate Groundwater 
Treatment Improvements Project for an amount not-to-exceed $985,000. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER that the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency's Board of Directors 
authorize its General Manager to issue a purchase order to MWH Constructors for 
construction management and inspection services for Well 205 Perchlorate Groundwater 
Treatment Improvements Project for an amount not-to-exceed $1,250,000. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER that the Agency’s General Manager or Chief Engineer are 
thereafter authorized to execute and forward to GSE Construction Co., Inc. an 
appropriate Notice to Proceed. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER that Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency’s Board of Directors 
directs staff to file a Notice of Determination with the County within five (5) working days 
of adoption of this Resolution.  
 
 

127



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

128



M
ay

 2
, 

20
24

W
E

LL
 2

05
 P

E
R

C
H

LO
R

A
T

E
 

G
R

O
U

N
D

W
A

T
E

R
 T

R
E

A
T

M
E

N
T

 
IM

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
S

 P
R

O
JE

C
T

B
oa

rd
 M

ee
tin

g

Ju
ne

 1
8,

 2
02

4
Sh

ad
i B

ad
er

, P
.E

., 
PM

P,
 C

C
M

Se
ni

or
 E

ng
in

ee
r

129



LO
C

A
T

IO
N

 M
A

P

2

C
re

at
ed

 u
si

ng
 G

oo
gl

e 
Ea

rth
 

130



P
R

O
JE

C
T

 B
A

C
K

G
R

O
U

N
D

3

•
W

el
l c

on
st

ru
ct

ed
 in

 2
00

0
•

2,
70

0 
gp

m
 c

ap
ac

ity
 

•
D

is
in

fe
ct

io
n 

on
ly

 tr
ea

tm
en

t
•

Pe
rc

hl
or

at
e 

de
te

ct
ed

 in
 2

01
2

–
C

ur
re

nt
ly

 a
bo

ve
 M

C
L

•
Vo

lu
nt

ar
ily

 ta
ke

n 
ou

t o
f s

er
vi

ce
•

VO
C

s 
su

bs
eq

ue
nt

ly
 d

et
ec

te
d 

at
 

tra
ce

 le
ve

ls
•

Fo
llo

w
ed

 N
C

P/
C

ER
C

LA
 p

ro
to

co
ls

131



3D
 R

E
N

D
E

R
IN

G
S

4132



3D
 R

E
N

D
E

R
IN

G
S

5133



•
St

af
f a

dv
er

tis
ed

 p
ro

je
ct

 o
n 

Pl
an

et
Bi

ds
 o

n 
M

ar
ch

 4
, 2

02
4

•
Pr

oj
ec

t w
as

 a
dv

er
tis

ed
 in

 T
he

 S
ig

na
l o

n 
M

ar
ch

 6
, 9

 a
nd

 1
6,

 2
02

4
•

Fi
ve

 (5
) B

id
s 

w
er

e 
el

ec
tro

ni
ca

lly
 o

pe
ne

d 
on

 M
ay

 1
5,

 2
02

4

 

*E
ng

in
ee

r’s
 E

st
im

at
e 

$2
2,

60
0,

00
0

**
 T

hi
s 

Pr
oj

ec
t w

ill 
he

lp
 m

ee
t t

he
 A

ge
nc

y’
s 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
Pl

an
 O

bj
ec

tiv
e 

B.
2.

1:
 “U

pd
at

e 
an

d 
ca

rry
 o

ut
 c

ap
ita

l p
ro

je
ct

s 
re

la
te

d 
to

 w
at

er
 s

ys
te

m
 re

lia
bi

lit
y 

an
d 

su
st

ai
na

bi
lit

y”
.

B
id

de
r

B
id

de
r O

ffi
ce

 L
oc

at
io

n
To

ta
l B

id
 P

ric
e

G
SE

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
C

o.
, I

nc
.

Li
ve

rm
or

e,
 C

A
$2

2,
19

6,
00

0
M

et
ro

 B
ui

ld
er

s 
& 

En
gi

ne
er

s 
N

ew
po

rt 
Be

ac
h,

 C
A

$2
2,

90
6,

50
3

Pa
ci

fic
 H

yd
ro

te
ch

 C
or

po
ra

tio
n

Pe
rri

s,
 C

A
$2

3,
94

1,
20

0
Ki

ew
it 

In
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
W

es
t C

o.
Sa

nt
e 

Fe
 S

pr
in

gs
, C

A
$2

8,
42

8,
00

0
En

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n,

 In
c.

W
oo

dl
an

d 
H

ills
, C

A
$3

3,
52

3,
68

5

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 B
ID

 R
E

S
U

LT
S

6

134



K
en

ne
dy

 J
en

ks
 P

ro
po

sa
l 

En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

Se
rv

ic
es

 D
ur

in
g 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n:
 

Su
bm

itt
al

s,
 R

FI
s,

 M
ee

tin
gs

, e
tc

. 
 

$9
40

,0
00

 
Pr

oj
ec

t  C
lo

se
ou

t a
nd

 R
ec

or
d 

D
ra

w
in

gs
$4

5,
00

0
 

Su
bt

ot
al

 
 

 
$9

85
,0

00
  

To
ta

l R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
Ti

m
e 

an
d 

M
at

er
ia

ls
 N

ot
 to

 E
xc

ee
d 

B
ud

ge
t 

$9
85

,0
00

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 D
U

R
IN

G
 

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

7

135



M
W

H
 C

on
st

ru
ct

or
s 

Pr
op

os
al

 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
M

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 In
sp

ec
tio

n 
Se

rv
ic

es
: 

 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

M
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 In

sp
ec

tio
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

  
$9

65
,0

00
 

M
at

er
ia

l  T
es

tin
g 

 
 

$2
85

,0
00

 
Su

bt
ot

al
 

 
 

$1
,2

50
,0

00

 
To

ta
l R

ec
om

m
en

de
d 

Ti
m

e 
an

d 
M

at
er

ia
ls

 N
ot

 to
 E

xc
ee

d 
B

ud
ge

t 
$1

,2
50

,0
00

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 A

N
D

 
IN

S
P

E
C

T
IO

N
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

8

136



9

• C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
Aw

ar
d 

Ph
as

e:
– 

Ju
ne

 6
, 2

02
4:

 E
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

an
d 

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 C

om
m

itt
ee

– 
Ju

ne
 1

8,
 2

02
4:

 B
oa

rd
 M

ee
tin

g

• C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
Ph

as
e:

– 
Ju

ly
 2

02
4:

 N
ot

ic
e 

to
 P

ro
ce

ed
– 

Ju
ly

 2
02

4 
to

 N
ov

em
be

r 2
02

5:
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

(5
00

 c
al

en
da

r d
ay

s)
– 

W
el

l 2
05

 b
ac

k 
on

lin
e 

by
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

02
5

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 S
C

H
E

D
U

LE

137



P
R

O
JE

C
T

 R
E

C
O

M
M

E
N

D
A

T
IO

N
Th

e 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g 
an

d 
O

pe
ra

tio
ns

 C
om

m
itt

ee
 re

co
m

m
en

ds
 th

at
 th

e 
Sa

nt
a 

C
la

rit
a 

Va
lle

y 
W

at
er

 A
ge

nc
y’

s 
B

oa
rd

 o
f D

ire
ct

or
s:

•
Ad

op
t t

he
 re

so
lu

tio
n 

aw
ar

di
ng

 a
 c

on
tra

ct
 to

 G
SE

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
C

o.
, I

nc
. 

fo
r t

he
 W

el
l 2

05
 P

er
ch

lo
ra

te
 G

ro
un

dw
at

er
 T

re
at

m
en

t I
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 

Pr
oj

ec
t f

or
 $

22
,1

96
,0

00
; a

nd

•
Au

th
or

iz
e 

th
e 

G
en

er
al

 M
an

ag
er

 to
 e

xe
cu

te
 p

ur
ch

as
e 

or
de

rs
 to

 
Ke

nn
ed

y 
Je

nk
s 

fo
r e

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
se

rv
ic

es
 d

ur
in

g 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
fo

r a
n 

am
ou

nt
 n

ot
 to

 e
xc

ee
d 

$9
85

,0
00

 a
nd

 M
W

H
 C

on
st

ru
ct

or
s 

fo
r 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

m
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 in

sp
ec

tio
n 

se
rv

ic
es

 fo
r a

n 
am

ou
nt

 n
ot

 to
 

ex
ce

ed
 $

1,
25

0,
00

0;
 a

nd

•
Au

th
or

iz
e 

St
af

f t
o 

fil
e 

a 
N

ot
ic

e 
of

 D
et

er
m

in
at

io
n.

10138



BOARD MEMORANDUM

The Engineering and Operations Committee met at 5:30 PM on Thursday, June 6, 2024 in the 
Summit Circle Engineering Services Section Boardroom located at 26521 Summit Circle. In 
attendance were Directors Gary Martin, Piotr Orzechowski and Kenneth Petersen. Staff 
members present were Chief Engineer Courtney Mael, Chief Operating Officer Keith 
Abercrombie, Executive Assistant Elizabeth Adler and Utility Operations Supervisor Dylan 
Schanfarber. Attending virtually were General Manager Matthew Stone, Senior Engineer Shadi 
Bader, Water Systems Supervisor James Saenz and Water Treatment Manager Rafael Pulido. 
Two members of the public were present. A copy of the Agenda is attached. 

Item 1: Pledge of Allegiance – Directors Orzechowski led the Committee in the Pledge of 
Allegiance.  

Item 2: Public Comments – There was no public comment. 

Item 3: Tracking Leaks to Identify Trends Informational Presentation – Dylan Schanfarber 
gave a presentation on tracking leaks to identify trends to the Committee.  

Item 4: Recommend Approval of a Change Order for the Beldove (Copper Hill) 2 Water 
Storage Tank Coating Project – There was public comment. The Committee briefly inquired 
about the need for the tank coating and the current process of inspecting the tanks. The 
Committee recommended the item be placed on the Consent Calendar at the June 18, 2024 
regular Board meeting. 

Item 5: Recommend Approval of a Contract with Royal Industrial Solutions for the Rio 
Vista Intake Pump Station Controls Modernization Project – The Committee discussed the 
Agency’s experience with the manufacturer and the current operating cycle on the pumps. The 
Committee recommended the item be placed on the Consent Calendar at the June 18, 2024 
regular Board meeting. 

Item 6: Recommend Approval of a Resolution Authorizing Santa Clarita Valley Water 
Agency to Provide Water Quality Laboratory Testing Services to the State of California 
Department of Water Resources – The Committee briefly discussed the volume of samples 
the Agency is receiving. The Committee recommended the item be placed on the Consent 
Calendar at the June 18, 2024 regular Board meeting. 

Item 7: Recommend Approval, Pursuant to a Previously Adopted Mitigated Negative 
Declaration and Addendum, of Adopting a Resolution for a Construction Contract with 
GSE Construction Co., Inc., and Purchase Orders to Kennedy Jenks for Engineering 
Services During Construction and to MWH Constructors for Construction Management 
and Inspection Services and Directing Staff to File a Notice of Determination for the Well 
205 Perchlorate Groundwater Treatment Improvements Project – The Committee and staff 

DATE: June 7, 2024 

TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Courtney Mael, P.E., Chief Engineer 
Keith Abercrombie, Chief Operating Officer 

SUBJECT: June 6, 2024 Engineering and Operations Committee Meeting Recap Report 

139

April Jacobs
Item 9.1

April Jacobs
KA

April Jacobs
Courtney Meal



 

briefly discussed the security measures that the Agency is taking for the well site and the 
Committee commented on staff’s accuracy with the Engineer’s estimate. The Committee 
recommended a full presentation of the item at the June 18, 2024 regular Board meeting. 
 
Item 8: Monthly Operations and Production Report – Staff and the Committee reviewed the 
Operations and Production Report. 
 
Item 9: Capital Improvement Projects Construction Status Report – Staff and the 
Committee reviewed the Capital Improvement Projects Construction Status Report. 
 
Item 10: Committee Planning Calendar – Staff and the Committee reviewed the FY 2023/24 
and FY 2024/25 Committee Planning Calendars. 
 
Item 11: General Report on Treatment, Distribution, Operations and Maintenance 
Services Section Activities – Keith Abercrombie shared with the Committee how TDOMS is 
handling the yearly performance reviews and how impressed Keith and Mike are with how the 
newly promoted TDOMS supervisors are handling this process. Keith also shared that TDOMS 
will have numerous other presentations similar to the one seen tonight that will be coming to 
future Committee meetings. 
 
Item 12: General Report on Engineering Services Section Activities – Courtney Mael 
shared with the Committee a few of the numerous accomplishments that the Engineering 
Services Section and Inspection Department had within the last fiscal year.  
 
Item 13: Adjournment – The meeting adjourned at 6:41 PM. 
 
The meeting recording is available on the SCV Water Website or by clicking the following link: 
Meeting Recording. 
 
CM/KA 
 
Attachment 

140

https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/2024-06/June%206%2C%202024%20Engineerging%20and%20Operations%20Committee%20Meeting%20Audio.mp3
https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/2024-06/June%206%2C%202024%20Engineerging%20and%20Operations%20Committee%20Meeting%20Audio.mp3
April Jacobs
Matt Stone



   
 

 

27234 BOUQUET CANYON ROAD •  SANTA CLARITA,  CALIFORNIA 91350-2173 •  661 297•1600 •  FAX 661 297•1611 
webs i te  add ress :  www.y ou rscv wa te r . co m 

 
 
  
 
 
Date: May 28, 2024 
 
To: Engineering and Operations Committee  
 William Cooper, Chair 
 Gary Martin 
 Piotr Orzechowski 
 Kenneth Petersen 
  
From: Courtney Mael, Chief Engineer 

Keith Abercrombie, Chief Operating Officer 
 
The Engineering and Operations Committee meeting is scheduled on Thursday, June 6, 
2024 at 5:30 PM at 26521 Summit Circle, Santa Clarita, CA 91350 in the Engineering 
Services Section (ESS) Boardroom. Members of the public may attend in person or virtually. 
To attend this meeting virtually, please see below. 
 

IMPORTANT NOTICES  
 

This meeting will be conducted in person at the address listed above. As a convenience to the 
public, members of the public may also participate virtually by using the Agency’s Call-In 
Number 1-(833)-568-8864, Webinar ID: 161 643 5599 or Zoom Webinar by clicking on the 
link https://scvwa.zoomgov.com/j/1616435599. Any member of the public may listen to the 
meeting or make comments to the Committee using the call-in number or Zoom Webinar link 
above. However, in the event there is a disruption of service which prevents the Agency from 
broadcasting the meeting to members of the public using either the call-in option or internet-
based service, this meeting will not be postponed or rescheduled but will continue without 
remote participation. The remote participation option is being provided as a convenience to the 
public and is not required. Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting in person.   
 
Attendees should be aware that while the Agency is following all applicable requirements and 
guidelines regarding COVID-19, the Agency cannot ensure the health of anyone attending a 
Committee meeting. Attendees should therefore use their own judgment with respect to 
protecting themselves from exposure to COVID-19. 
 
Members of the public unable to attend this meeting may submit comments either in writing to 
eadler@scvwa.org or by mail to Elizabeth Adler, Executive Assistant, Santa Clarita Valley Water 
Agency, 26521 Summit Circle, Santa Clarita, CA 91350. All written comments received before 
4:00 PM the day of the meeting will be distributed to the Committee members and posted on the 
Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency website prior to the start of the meeting. Anything received 
after 4:00 PM the day of the meeting will be made available at the meeting and posted on the 
SCV Water website the following day.    
  

141

https://scvwa.zoomgov.com/j/1616435599
eadler
CM initials

eadler
Keith Abercrombie initials



May 28, 2024 
Page 2 of 3 
 

 

MEETING AGENDA 

1.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

2.  PUBLIC COMMENTS – Members of the public may comment as to items within the 
subject matter jurisdiction of the Agency that are not on the Agenda at this time. 
Members of the public wishing to comment on items covered in this Agenda may do so 
at the time each item is considered. (Comments may, at the discretion of the 
Committee Chair, be limited to three minutes for each speaker.) To participate in public 
comment from your computer, tablet, or Smartphone, click the “raise hand” feature in 
Zoom. You will be notified when it is your turn to speak, please unmute when 
requested. To participate in public comment via phone, dial *9 to raise your hand. 
When it is your turn to speak, dial *6 to unmute.  

  
ITEMS                   PAGE 
 

3.   * Tracking Leaks to Identify Trends Informational Presentation 1 

4.   * Recommend Approval of a Change Order for the Beldove (Copper Hill) 
2 Water Storage Tank Coating Project 

13 

5.   * Recommend Approval of a Contract with Royal Industrial Solutions for 
the Rio Vista Intake Pump Station Controls Modernization Project 

23 

6.   * Recommend Approval of a Resolution Authorizing Santa Clarita Valley 
Water Agency to Provide Water Quality Laboratory Testing Services to 
the State of California Department of Water Resources 

33 

7.   * Recommend Approval, Pursuant to a Previously Adopted Mitigated 
Negative Declaration and Addendum, of Adopting a Resolution for a 
Construction Contract with GSE Construction Co., Inc., and Purchase 
Orders to Kennedy Jenks for Engineering Services During Construction 
and to MWH Constructors for Construction Management and Inspection 
Services and Directing Staff to File a Notice of Determination for the 
Well 205 Perchlorate Groundwater Treatment Improvements Project 

37 

8.   * Monthly Operations and Production Report 55 

9.   * Capital Improvement Projects Construction Status Report 65 

10.   * Committee Planning Calendar 67 

11.    General Report on Treatment, Distribution, Operations and 
Maintenance Services Section Activities 

 

12. General Report on Engineering Services Section Activities  

13. Adjournment  
 * Indicates Attachment 

• Indicates Handout 
 
 
 

142



May 28, 2024 
Page 3 of 3 
 

 

NOTICES: 
 
Any person may make a request for a disability-related modification or accommodation needed 
for that person to be able to participate in the public meeting by telephoning Elizabeth Adler, 
Executive Assistant, at (661) 297-1600, or in writing to Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency at 
26521 Summit Circle, Santa Clarita, CA 91350 Requests must specify the nature of the 
disability and the type of accommodation requested. A telephone number or other contact 
information should be included so that Agency staff may discuss appropriate arrangements. 
Persons requesting a disability-related accommodation should make the request with adequate 
time before the meeting for the Agency to provide the requested accommodation. 
 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.5, non-exempt public records that relate to open 
session agenda items and are distributed to a majority of the Committee less than seventy-two 
(72) hours prior to the meeting will be available for public inspection at the Santa Clarita Valley 
Water Agency, located at 27234 Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, CA 91350, during 
regular business hours. When practical, these public records will also be made available on the 
Agency’s Internet Website, accessible at http://www.yourscvwater.com. 
 
Posted on May 30, 2024. 
 

143

http://www.yourscvwater.com/
eadler
Matt Stone initials



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

144


	Information Sheet
	Agenda
	Item 6.1
	Item 6.2
	Item 6.3
	Item 6.4
	Item 6.5
	Item 7.1
	Item 9.1



